
The 

HARRIS 
CENTER tor The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD 

9401 Southwest Freeway Houston, TX 77074 
Steve Schnee Conference Room# 104 

Mental Health and !DD 

Transforming Lives 

Full Board Meeting 
August 25, 2021 

9:30 am 

I. DECLARATION OF QUORUM 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Ill. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A. Approve Minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting Held on 

Wednesday, July 28, 2021 
(EXHIBIT F-1) 

IV. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S/CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER'S 
REPORT 

V. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ACTIONS 
A. Resource Committee Report and/or Action 

(G. Womack, Chair) 

1. FY'21 Year-to-Date Budget Report-August 
(EXHIBIT F-2 Sean J<jm) 

B. Quality Committee Report and/or Action 
(G. Santos, Chair) 

C. Program Committee Report and/or Action 
(B. Hellums, Chair) 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Commercial Insurance Renewal 2021-2022 

(EXHIBIT F-3 Anthony Robinson) 

B. Health and Medical Insurance 
(EXHIBIT F-4 LesleifjJ Robertson) 

C. FY 2022 Proposed Budget: Operating and Capital 
(EXHIBIT F-5 Sean J<jm) 

D. Authorization to Transfer July 2021 eFMAP Funds to COVID-19 
ReseNe and Payment of COVI D-19 Expenses from COVI D-19 
ReseNe 
(EXHIBIT F-6 Sean J<jm) 

E. Approve FY'21 Year-to-Date Budget Report-August 
(EXHIBIT F-7 Sean J<jm) 

F. August 2021 New Contracts Over 50K 
(EXHIBIT F-8 Silvia Tiller) 

G. August 2021 Contract Renewals Over 50K 
(EXHIBIT F-9 Silvia Tiller) 

H. August 2021 Contract Amendments Over 50K 
(EXHIBIT F-10 Silvia Tiller) 



I. August 2021 lnterlocal Agreements 
(EXHIBIT F-11 Silvia Tiller) 

VII. CONSIDER AND RECOMMEND ACTION 
A. Continuous Care Performance Award Proposal and Vaccination 

Incentive Plan 
(Sean Kjm) 

VI 11 . BOARD CHAIR'S REPORT 

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
* In accordance with §551.072 of the Texas Government Code, 
Discussion about the acquisition of real property for a new 
Children's program -Silvia Tiller, Director of Contracts 

* As authorized by §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, 
the Board of Trustees reserves the right to adjourn into 
Executive Session at anytime during the course of this meeting 
to seek legal advice from its attorney about any matters listed 
on the agenda. 

X. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 

XI . CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION AS A RESULT OF THE EXECUTIVE 
SESSION 

XII. INFORMATION ONLY 

A. August 2021 New Contracts Under 50K 
(EXHIBIT F-12) 

B. August 2021 Contract Renewals Under 50K 
(EXHIBIT F-13) 

C. August 2021 Contract Amendments Under 50K 
(EXHIBIT F-14) 

D. August 2021 Affiliation Agreements, Grants, MOU's and Revenues
Information Only 
(EXHIBIT F-15) 

XIII. ADJOURN 

Veronica Franco, Board Liaison 
Shaukat Zakaria, Chair, Board of Trustees 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and I DD 



EXHIBIT



 

 
Board of Trustees 

July 28, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 1 of 4 

THE HARRIS CENTER for 

Mental Health and IDD 

 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

 

This is an official record of the Board of Trustees, The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD, an Agency of 

the State, established by the Harris County Commissioners Court under provisions of Chapter 534 of the Health 

and Safety Code of the State of Texas. 

 

 

PLACE OF MEETING:  Conference Room 104  

  9401 Southwest Freeway     

    Houston, Texas 77074 

 

TYPE OF MEETING:  Regular 

  

 DATE:    July 28, 2021 

 

TRUSTEES 

IN ATTENDANCE:    Mr. Shaukat Zakaria, Chairperson 

Dr. George Santos, Vice Chairperson 

    Dr. Lois Moore, Vice Chairperson 

    Mr. Gerald Womack 

 Judge Bonnie Hellums     

    Dr. Robin Gearing  

Mr. Taseer Badar-virtual 

Mr. Jim Lykes 

Dr. Elizabeth McIngvale   

 

 

TRUSTEES ABSENT:       

                                                     

 

1. Declaration of Quorum  

Mr. Shaukat Zakaria, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. noting that a quorum of 

the Board was in attendance. 

 

2. Public Comments 

Mr. Shaukat Zakaria announced the floor is open for public comments. There were no public 

comments made.  

 

3.      Approval of Minutes  

          

MOTION BY: SANTOS   SECOND: GEARING 

       

With unanimous affirmative votes 

 

  BE IT RESOLVED the Minutes of the Regular Board of Trustees meeting held on Wednesday, 

 June 23, 2021 as presented under Exhibit F-1, are approved. 

Page 3 of 338



 

 
Board of Trustees 

July 28, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 2 of 4 

  

4.    Chief Executive Officer’s Report was provided by CEO Wayne Young  

  Mr. Young provided a Chief Executive Officer report to the Board.  

       
5.     Committee Reports and Action were presented by the respective chairs:  

 A.  Resource Committee Report and/or Action- G. Womack, Chair 

   1.  FY’21 Year-to-Date Budget Report- July      

 B. Quality Committee Report and/or Action- G. Santos, Chair 

 C. Program Committee Report and/or Action- B. Hellums, Chair 

 D.  Audit Committee Report and/or Action-L. Moore, Chair 

 D. Governance Committee Report and/or Action-J. Lykes, Chair 

  

6.  Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Dr. Santos moved to approve Consent Agenda items A through T 

SECOND:  G. Womack seconded the motion. 

BE IT RESOLVED, with unanimous affirmative vote, Consent Agenda items A through T were 

approved. 

 

  A. Approve FY’21 Year-to-Date Budget Report-July 

        

  B. July 2021 New Contracts Over 50K 

 

 C. July 2021 Contract Renewals Over 50K 

 

D. July 2021 Contract Amendments Over 50K 

 

E. July 2021 Interlocal Agreements 

 

F. Disaster & Emergency Plan 

 

G. Closed Record Committee Policy 

 

H. Criminal History Clearances Policy 

 

I.  Employee Job Descriptions Policy 

 

J. Confidentiality Disclosure of PHI Policy 

 

K. License Certification and Registration Policy 

 

L. Nursing Peer Review and Safe Harbor Policy 

 

M. Telehealth and Telemedicine Services Policy 

 

N. Patient Safety Committee Policy 

Page 4 of 338



 

 
Board of Trustees 

July 28, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 3 of 4 

 

O. Purchasing Card Policy 

 

P. Medical Peer Review Policy 

 

Q. Pharmacy and Unit Medication and Drug Inventory Policy 

 

R. Medication Storage, Preparation and Administration Areas Policy 

 

S. Pharmaceutical Representatives Policy 

 

T. Suicide and Homicide Prevention Policy 

 

7.   Consider and Recommend Action 

 

A. Board Bylaw Amendment 

 

MOTION BY: SANTOS   SECOND: GEARING 

       

With unanimous affirmative votes 

 

  BE IT RESOLVED the Board Bylaw Amendment as presented under Exhibit F-23, are 

approved. 

 

8.   Review and Comment  

   

  A. Epic Update 

       Mustafa Cochinwala and David Chou, CIO from Harris Health System presented on the Epic  

       Update 

 

  B. 6160 South Loop Apartment Update 

       Wayne Young presented on 6160 South Loop Apartment Update  

   

B. Full Board-Emergency Supplemental Item-Update on Emergency Procurement of HVAC and  

Generator at Residential Treatment Program located at 6160 South Loop East 

       Wayne Young presented on 6160 South Loop Apartment Update  

 

 

9.    Executive Session  

At 11:36 a.m. Chairperson Mr. Shaukat Zakaria announced the Board would enter into 

Executive Session for the following reasons: 

• Pursuant to §551.071 of the Texas Government Code-Consultation with General 

Counsel regarding contemplated litigation—Case # 4:21-cv-02351 Lawrence Bell v. 

Janet May & the Harris Center for Mental Health & IDD. Kendra Thomas, General 

Counsel 

Page 5 of 338



 

 
Board of Trustees 

July 28, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 4 of 4 

10.    Reconvene into Open Session and Take Action 

  No action was taken in Executive Session 

 

11.  ADJOURN 

MOTION: SANTOS  SECOND: HELLUMS 
Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:04 P.M. 

 

         

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Veronica Franco, Board Liaison  

Shaukat Zakaria, Secretary, Board of Trustees 

The HARRIS CENTER for Mental Health and IDD 

Page 6 of 338



EXHIBIT F-2



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

For the Eleventh Month and Year to Date Ended July 31, 2021

Fiscal Year 2021

Presented to the Resource Committee of the Board of Trustees on August 17, 2021

Financial Report

Page 7 of 338



Page 8 of 338



Actual Budget Variance
Revenues 21,329$         21,478$         (149)$             
Expenditures 26,553 23,771 (2,782)

Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (5,223)$          (2,293)$          (2,930)$          

Actual Budget Variance
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources 23,814$         (303)$             24,117$  

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Financial Summary

For the Eleventh Month and Year to Date Ended July 31, 2021

Month (,000)

Year-to-date (,000)

Page 2

Page 9 of 338



Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ %

Total Revenues:
Harris County and Local 4,589,840$          4,315,514$          274,326$             6% 51,335,274$        47,413,427$        3,921,847$          8%
PAP / Samples 964,673 1,583,323 (618,650) -39% 13,072,392 17,416,553 (4,344,161)           -25%
Interest 3,133 41,666 (38,533) c -92% 114,383 458,326 (343,943)              -75%
State General 9,677,339 9,642,311 35,028 0% 105,738,986 106,065,406 (326,420)              0%
State Grants 1,631,686 891,778 739,908 d 83% 11,492,488 9,895,834 1,596,654            16%
Federal Grants 1,654,674 1,063,105 591,569 56% 18,345,359 11,694,152 6,651,207            57%
3rd party billings 2,808,033 3,940,212 (1,132,179) e -29% 33,719,191 37,953,519 (4,234,328)           -11%

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -------------
Total Revenue 21,329,378 21,477,909 (148,531) f -1% 233,818,073 230,897,217 2,920,856 1%

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 18,105,259 15,925,153 (2,180,106) g -14% 177,769,355 175,184,270 (2,585,085) -1%
Travel 65,622 193,215 127,593 66% 542,275 1,879,804 1,337,529            71%
Contracts and Consultants 1,648,631 1,803,662 155,031 9% 18,036,381 19,875,782 1,839,401            9%
HCPC Contract 2,331,047 2,369,794 38,747 2% 25,747,644 26,077,734 330,090               1%
Supplies and Drugs 1,302,321 1,902,175 599,854 32% 16,570,445 20,935,121 4,364,676            21%
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 403,600 377,155 (26,445) h -7% 12,418,204 4,162,816 (8,255,388)           -198%
Building (Purch, Rent, Maint) 1,905,245 283,231 (1,622,014) i -573% 13,675,005 3,114,688 (10,560,317)         -339%
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 10,306 28,249 17,943 64% 135,133 311,814 176,681               57%
Telephone and Utilities 271,386 222,979 (48,407) -22% 2,370,253 2,452,821 82,568 3%
Insurance, Legal, Audit 146,826 137,843 (8,983) -7% 1,735,596 1,516,063 (219,533)              -14%
Note Payments - - - 0% 552,424 588,597 36,173 6%
Other 322,685 460,148 137,463 30% 4,386,983 5,131,284 744,301               15%
Claims Denials 39,854 67,534 27,680 41% 648,291 742,852 94,561 13%
Reserve for Bad Debt - - - 0% - - - 0.0%

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -----------
Total Expenses 26,552,782 23,771,138 (2,781,644) j -12% 274,587,989 261,973,646 (12,614,343) -5%

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (5,223,404) a (2,293,229) (2,930,175) (40,769,916) (31,076,429) (9,693,487)

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx 1,584,778            - 1,584,778 10,210,473          - 10,210,473 
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 - - - 3,568,270            - 3,568,270 
Fund Balance DSRIP 629,236               629,236               - 6,928,667            6,930,895            (2,228) 
Waiver 1115 Revenues 2,167,484            2,167,484            - 23,842,345          23,842,366          (21) 
DSRIP Transition 1,809,411            - 1,809,411 19,022,277          - 19,022,277 
COVID-19 FMAP Allocation - - - - - -
Insurance Proceeds 9,177 - 9,177 990,607               - 990,607 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - 21,125 - 21,125 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Securities - - - - - -

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources 976,682$             503,491$             473,191$             23,813,848$        b (303,168)$            24,117,016$        

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============

Favorable  or (Unfavorable) Favorable  or (Unfavorable)

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenue and Expenses - Actual to Budget 

Month Ended July 31, 2021 Eleven Months Ended July 31, 2021

Variance Variance

For the Eleventh Month and Year to Date Ended July 31, 2021

Page 3

Page 10 of 338



Core Business DSRIP Capital Expenditures

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Revenues:
Local 5,557,093$          5,935,695$          553$  4,808$  - - 
State General Revenue 9,659,386            9,624,358            17,953 17,953 - - 
State Grants 1,631,686            891,778 - - - - 
Federal Grants 1,654,674            1,063,105            - - - - 
Federal Revenue - DSRIP - - 3,976,895            1,705,260            - - 
3rd party billings 2,722,736            3,842,252            85,297 97,960 - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Revenue 21,225,575          21,357,188          4,080,698            1,825,981            - - 

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 16,703,855          14,562,531          1,401,404            1,362,622            - - 
Travel 61,585 180,437 4,037 12,778 - - 
Contracts and Consultant 1,548,593            1,686,104            100,038 117,558 - - 
HCPC Contract 2,331,047            2,369,794            - - - - 
Supplies and Drugs 1,272,355            1,878,502            29,966 23,673 - - 
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 251,430 300,549 64,610 76,606 87,560 - 
Building (Rent, Maint) 280,731 (102,011)              127,296 385,242 1,497,218            - 
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 7,357 16,539 2,949 11,710 - - 
Telephone and Utilities 254,471 183,355 16,915 39,624 - - 
Insurance, Legal, Audit 118,923 107,784 27,903 30,059 - - 
Note Payments - - - - - - 
Other 314,748 436,504 7,937 23,644 - - 
Claims Denials 39,507 67,039 347 495 - - 
Reserve for Bad Debt - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Expenses 23,184,602          21,687,127          1,783,402            2,084,011            1,584,778            - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (1,959,027)           (329,939)              2,297,296            (258,030)              (1,584,778)           - 

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx - - - - 1,584,778            - 
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 - - - - - - 
Fund Balance DSRIP 629,236 629,236 - - - - 
Insurance Proceeds 9,177 - - - - - 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - - - - 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Securities - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources (1,320,614)$         299,297$             2,297,296$          (258,030)$            -$                         -$  

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenues and Expenses- Core Business and DSRIP

Management Use Only (Non-GAAP)
For The Month Ended July 31, 2021

Month Ended July 31, 2021

Page 4

Page 11 of 338



Core Business DSRIP Capital Expenditures

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Revenues:
Local 64,488,296$        65,235,418$        33,753$  52,888$  $ $
State General Revenue 105,541,503        105,867,923        197,483 197,483 - - 
State Grants 11,492,488          9,895,834            - - - - 
Federal Grants 18,345,359          11,694,152          - - - - 
Federal Revenue - DSRIP - - 42,864,622 23,842,323 - - 
3rd party billings 32,674,130          36,883,497          1,045,061 1,070,022 - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Revenue 232,541,776        229,576,824        44,140,919          25,162,716          - - 

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 163,861,744        159,804,858        13,907,611          15,379,412          - - 
Travel 526,086 1,745,837            16,189 133,967 - - 
Contracts and Consultant 17,091,831          18,582,673          944,550 1,293,109            - - 
HCPC Contract 25,747,644          26,077,734          - - - - 
Supplies and Drugs 16,416,080          20,678,131          154,365 256,990 - - 
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 3,752,914            3,307,125            750,493 855,691 7,914,797 - 
Building (Purch,Rent, Maint) 9,959,007            1,227,690            1,420,322            1,886,998            2,295,676 - 
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 105,273 185,004 29,860 126,810 - - 
Telephone and Utilities 2,189,857            2,016,010            180,396 436,811 - - 
Insurance, Legal, Audit 1,425,671            1,184,767            309,925 331,296 - - 
Note Payments - - 552,424 552,424 - - 
Other 4,221,191            4,872,033            165,792 259,251 - - 
Claims Denials 634,480 737,407 13,811 5,445 - - 
Reserve for Bad Debt - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Expenses 245,931,778        240,419,269        18,445,738          21,518,204          10,210,473          - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (13,390,002)         (10,842,445)         25,695,181          3,644,512            (10,210,473)         - 

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx - - - - 10,210,473          - 
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 3,568,270            - - - - - 
Fund Balance DSRIP 6,928,667            6,930,895            - - - - 
Insurance Proceeds 988,747 - 1,860 - - - 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 21,125 - - - - - 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Securities - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources (1,883,193)$         (3,911,550)$         25,697,041$        3,644,512$          -$  -$  

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenues and Expenses- Core Business and DSRIP

Management Use Only (Non-GAAP)
For the Year to Date Ended July 31, 2021

Eleven Months Ended July 31, 2021

Page 5

Page 12 of 338



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparative Balance Sheet

As of July 31, 2021

Ending Balance Increase/(Decrease)
June 30, 2021 July 31, 2021 July

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 115,147,222$           140,032,839$          24,885,617$            a
Inventory - includes RX 304,877 300,070 (4,807) b
Prepaid Expenses 2,563,932 5,719,089 3,155,157 c
A/R Medicaid, Medicare, 3rd Party 14,863,471               14,997,768               134,297 
    Less Bad Debt Reserve (5,884,594) (6,374,639)               (490,045) 
A/R Other 24,260,223               25,498,888               1,238,665 d
A/R DSRIP 41,180,372               - (41,180,372) e
Total Current Assets 192,435,503             180,174,014            (12,261,488)             

Land 5,028,114 5,028,114 - 
Building 25,773,792               25,773,792               - 
Building Improvements 20,863,609               20,914,881               51,272 
Furniture and Fixtures 9,882,776 9,898,640 15,864 
Vehicles 1,605,231 1,605,231 - 
Construction in Progress 12,973,806               14,558,584               1,584,778 
Total Property, Plant & Equipment 76,127,328               77,779,242               1,651,914 

TOTAL ASSETS 268,562,831$           257,953,256$          (10,609,574)$           

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Unearned Income 48,992,867$             43,918,857$            (5,074,010)$             f
Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payables 25,855,733               19,907,275               (5,948,458) g
Current Portion Long Term Debt - - - 
Total Current Liabilities 74,848,600               63,826,132               (11,022,468)             

State Escheatment Payable 34,746 33,067 (1,679) 
Total Non Current Liabilities 34,746 33,067 (1,679) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 74,883,346               63,859,199               (11,024,147)             

General Fund Balance 20,086,704               15,533,661               (4,553,043) h
Nonspendable

Investment in Inventories 304,877 304,877 - 
Investment In Fixed Assets 76,127,328               77,779,242               1,651,914 

Assigned:
Current Capital Projects 21,856,193               24,824,448               2,968,255 i
Future Purchases of Real Property and IT Infrastructure 1,365,842 1,365,842 - 
   Debt Repayment - - - 
   Self Insurance 2,000,000 2,000,000 - 
   ECI Building Use 361,664 361,664 - 
   Waiver 1115 41,439,569               40,810,333               (629,236) 
   COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve 2,445,788 2,445,788 - 
   Compensated Absences 4,854,354 4,854,354 - 
Total 170,842,319             170,280,209            (562,110) 

Year to Date Excess Revenues over
(under) Expenditures 22,837,166 23,813,848               976,682 

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 193,679,485             194,094,057            414,572 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 268,562,831$           257,953,256$          (10,609,575)$           

Page 6

Page 13 of 338



Page 7 

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD 
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Reports 

For Month and Year to Date Ended July 31, 2021 

I. Comparison of Revenue and Expenses - Actual to Budget

a. For the month of July 2021, the eleventh month of the fiscal year, The Harris Center is reporting Excess Expenditures over
Revenues of $5,223,404.

b. The year-to-date amount translates to Excess Revenues over Expenditures of $23,813,848 after use of fund balance, fund
balance CapEx, fund balance DSRIP, Waiver 1115 revenues, insurance proceeds and DSRIP transition are considered.

c. Interest is unfavorable to budget by $38,533 because of lower interest rates caused by Federal Reserve interest rate
reductions in response to the economic downturn from the COVID-19 pandemic.

d. State Grants is favorable to budget by $739,908 primarily due to timing of ECI revenues.

e. Third Party Billings is unfavorable to budget by $1,132,179.

f. Total Revenue is unfavorable to budget by $148,531.

g. Salaries and Fringe Benefits are unfavorable to budget by $2,180,106 due to salaries and fringe benefits paid by grants
awarded after approval of the original budget.

h. Equipment is unfavorable to budget by $26,445. Equipment purchases exceeding budget were covered by funds designated
by the Board through Fund Balance-Capex designations.

i. Building is unfavorable to original budget by $1,622,014 primarily due to purchase of NE land which was covered by funds
designated by the Board through Fund Balance-Capex designations.

j. Total Expenses are unfavorable to budget by $2,781,644 due to expenses associated with Board designated Capex funds and
grants awarded after approval of the original budget.

Page 14 of 338



Page 8 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents The agency considers cash and cash equivalents to be cash on hand, demand deposit accounts and
short term investments with maturities of less than ninety days. Cash and cash equivalents increased from the prior month because of
operations and receipt of DSRIP funds.

Page 15 of 338



Page 9 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

b. Inventory normally does not significantly change from month to month. The balance is normally only updated annually at the time of
the year end physical inventory. PAP/Drug Samples are not included in inventory, as this inventory does not belong to the Center.
Inventory consists of the following:

c. Prepaid Expenses increased because of HCPC activity.

Page 16 of 338



Page 10 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

d. Account Receivable Other increased in July.

Page 17 of 338



Page 11 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

d. Account Receivable Other (continued)

e. A/R DSRIP decreased as the Center adjusted for DSRIP funding owed to the Center.

Page 18 of 338



Page 12 

f. Unearned Income decreased due to spending of State GR funds.

g. Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payable decreased because of payment timing related to accounts payable, payroll, and employee
fringe benefit liabilities.

h. General Fund Balance decreased due to allocation of Board approved Capex projects to designated fund balance categories.

i. Current Capital Projects increased due to allocation of Board approved Capex projects to designated fund balance categories.

j. Days of Operation in Reserve for Total Agency is 161 days and for Core Business is 99 days versus 159 and 98 days for the prior
month, respectively.

III. Investment Portfolio

a. Total investments as of July 31, 2021, is $56,023,110 of which 100% is in government pools (Texas Class 49% and TexPool 51%).

b. Investments this month yielded interest income of $3,133.

Page 19 of 338



THE HARRIS CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH AND IDD
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 
July 31, 2021

Issuer CUSIP/ Security # Book Value              
Cost Transfer In Txpool/ TX Class

Transfer  Out      Tx 
pool/ TX Class

Interest       Txpool/ 
TX Class

Allowance 
Unrealized G/L

Market Value 
Ending Balance

Market Value 
Beginning Balance Portfolio %

Interest 
Accrual

Coupon 
Rate

Settlement 
Date

GOVERNMENT POOLS
TEXAS CLASS - GF G/L 120700 31,220,727            - (3,300,000) 1,496 27,922,223            49.84% 0.0615%

TEXPOOL    ISF G/L 120610 2,288,884              - - 37 2,288,921              4.09% 0.0189%
TEXPOOL   GF G/L 120600 1,001,560              - - 16 1,001,576              1.79% 0.0189%
TEXPOOL PRIME G/L 120620 29,308,805            - (4,500,000) 1,585 24,810,390            44.29% 0.0655%

Subtotal Texpool 43,086,969            - (4,500,000) 1,638 28,100,887            50.16%

Subtotal Government Pools 95,795,588            - (7,800,000) 3,133 56,023,110            100.00%

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 95,795,588$          -$  (7,800,000)$  3,133$  -$  56,023,110$          100.00%

Total Investment Interest G/L 409000 & 409005 3,133 3 Month Weighted Average Maturity (Days) 1.00
- 3 Month Weighted Average Yield 0.0655%

Total Interest 3,133$  3 Month Rolling Weighted Average Daily Treasury Bill Rate (4 weeks) 0.0280%

Page 13

Page 20 of 338



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Monthly Report of Financial Transactions Related to Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits

Report for July 2021

Vendor Description Monthly Not-To-Exceed* Jul-21
YTD Total 

(Apr -July 2021)

Lincoln Financial Group
Retirement Funds 
(401a, 403b, 457)

$1,500,000 $1,281,359 $4,022,523

UNUM Insurance
Life Insurance, AD&D, LTD, Vision, 
Individual Disablity Insurance

$220,000 $197,100 $790,049

Cigna Health and Life Insurance Health and Life Insurance $2,300,000 $2,027,580 $8,161,698

Cigna Dental Dental Insurance $100,000 $77,161 $310,874

* As established by the Board Resolution: Harris Center Board of Trustees Signature Authorization and Delegation Authority for Certain Items effective April 28, 2021

Note: Non-employee portion of July 2021 Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits = 9% of Expenditures.

    Page 14      

Page 21 of 338



EXHIBIT F-3



Commercial Insurance Renewal
2 0 2 1 - 2 0 2 2

Page 22 of 338



Commercial Insurance Team

D. Anthony Robinson, JD/MBA
Vice President, Enterprise Risk Management

Eunice Davis, MSW 
Director, Risk Management Services

Dennis L. Northington
Senior Vice President, Frost Insurance

Raul Barberena, CIC
Market President, Frost Insurance

Debbie Davis-Morales
Senior Account Manager

Robert Baber, CSHO
Risk Manager, Frost Insurance

 

                                                                                

Page 23 of 338



Marketing Results

3

Our review of insurance markets available to you is a continuous process. Traditional social service markets have not been acceptable 
due the scope and programs offered by The Harris Center.

The Texas Council Risk Management Fund is a self-insurance pool. The Fund provides Workers’ Compensation, General Liability, Sexual 
Misconduct, Errors and Omissions, Professional Liability including Primary Care and Closed Pharmacy, Auto Liability, and Property 
Damage including Auto Physical Damage coverage for its members. Members pool their risks and resources to gain stability and scale 
to help keep prices low. In addition to pooled-insurance coverage, member centers receive claims, risk management, and loss 
prevention services tailored to meet their needs.

Members Equity Credit: The annual amount received is based on claims experience for each coverage line except excess liability and 
property and is allocated on premium contributions.

Property Value Updates: TCRMF periodically does property valuations  on member’s buildings.  Given that the Fund provides coverage 
on a “replacement cost “basis, it is important to maintain accurate replacement cost values on all scheduled property locations. 

Each year, the Fund conducts physical (on-site) valuations of approximately on third of the members properties. In those years when 
on-site appraisals are not conducted the Fund uses trend factors supplied by Marshall & Swift that are specific to construction costs in 
a given are to adjust the amount of the appraisal values. 

Page 24 of 338



Marketing Results

4

• Coverage for buildings is provided on a replacement cost basis unless otherwise noted on the building and contents schedule.
• Coverage for mobile equipment is provided on an actual cash value basis unless otherwise noted on the mobile equipment 

schedule.

The valuations help to ensure that scheduled values accurately reflect replacement cost value. 
This protects the fund and its members’ by ensuring that adequate coverage is in place. This also satisfies requirements by 
the Fund’s property reinsurer. 

Based upon either physical valuations or current trend factors supplied Marshall & Swift, the Fund has updated the property values of 
buildings, which are owned by your center or leased and required by contract to be insured by your center. All updated values are 
reflected in the property values used for the 2021-2022 Fund Year.

Motor Vehicle Reports (MVR):  

The Fund will continue to perform MVR’s as members submit them for prospective hires and when employees are in vehicle accidents 
when on center business.

  

Page 25 of 338



Renewal Considerations

5

Windstorm Coverage- Named Storm Wind:

• Tier 1 Windstorm : Windstorm coverage is excess of the maximum amount of coverage available from the Texas Windstorm 
Insurance Association (TWIA) in the 14 eligible counties designated as Tier 1, subject to a $4,424,000 minimum deductible per 
occurrence per Location (Total TIV at location) 

• Harris County and Fort Bend County Windstorm: 5% per occurrence per location (Total TIV at location) deductible, subject to a 
$100,000 minimum deductible per location. (Total TIV at location) shall apply for all locations in Harris County and Fort Bend 
County.

• Location  shall mean all properties, regardless as to the number of scheduled with the Fund at the same physical address. Total 
insured values (TIV) at the location shall mean the sum of all replacement cost values for buildings, contents and property in the 
yard without regard to the sublimit, at the location.

• For properties not located in Tier 1 or in Harris County or in Fort Bend County, the Wind/Hail Coverage Deductible-Other than 
Named Storm Wind would apply.

Page 26 of 338



Renewal Considerations

6

Named Storm Wind is defined as direct action of wind, including wind driven rain, when associated with occurring in conjunction 
with a storm or weather disturbance that has been declared and named by the National Weather Bureau, National Hurricane 
Center, National Weather Service or any other recognized meteorologist authority to be a Hurricane, Typhoon, Tropical Cyclone, 
Tropical Storm or Tropical Depression whether or not such storm or weather disturbance is named prior to loss or damage.

Wind/ Hail Coverage Deductible- Other than Named Storm Wind: 
• The deductible for wind or hail losses from weather events other than Named Storm Wind as defined above is  1% of the building 

TIV, subject to a $25,000 per building maximum and $50,000 aggregate maximum per occurrence. 

Flood Coverage
• Flood coverage is excluded for properties located in 100 year flood zones A, zone V, including zones and zones prefixed A or V as 

shown in the most recent documentation published by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), or other qualified 
and recognized authority  in absence of FEMA.

• For property at locations other than the 100 year flood zones, the member’s standard deductible will apply for flood coverage.

• The aggregate limit for loss by Flood in any single Fund Year shall not exceed $5,000,000 at all locations not situated within the 
100 year flood zone A,  zone V and  zones prefixed A or V as shown in the most recent documentation  published  by the  Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) or other qualified and recognized authority in the absence of FEMA.

Page 27 of 338



Renewal Considerations

7

• The following locations have a separate Flood Policy due to the fact that they are in the 100 year flood zones.

• 11511 Bob White Road, Houston TX 77035 $262,511 building $156,288 contents; $22,696 income
• 7200 North Loop East, Houston TX  77028 $2,722,476 building; $1,350,181 contents; $203,928 income (1st floor)
• 1200 Baker Street, Houston TX 77002  $137,152 contents (1st floor)

• Regarding Texas Council Risk Management Fund: Available Equity Credits have been included in the premium indication presented 
for select lines of coverage. 

Page 28 of 338



2021-22 TCRMF Program Cost

8

Coverage
2021-2022

TCRMF Estimated Premium 
 2021-2022

Exposure Change
2020-2021

TCRMF Estimated Premium 
Property including
Boiler Machinery

Annual Contribution: $657,127.00
No Equity Credit

Bldg./BPP TIV:  $134,059,939
$10,000 AOP Deductible

Wind Deductible 1% of the TIV Subject to 
$25K per building maximum and $50K 
Aggregate maximum per occurrence 
 
Named Storm Deductible 5%  per 
occurrence, per location (Total TIV at 
location) deductible, subject to a $100K 
minimum deductible per location (Total TIV  
at location) shall apply for all  locations in 
Harris County and Fort Bend County.

2021-22 rate increased consistent 
with market trend; to maintain 

Replacement Cost Value

Building demolished located at 2001 
Cedar Bayou, Baytown TX 77520. 

Currently insure
 vacant land only. 

Added building 
at 6160 South Loop East, Houston, 

TX 77087

Named Storm Deductible 
No change.

Annual Contribution: $388,612.00
No Equity Credit 

Bldg./BPP TIV:  $138,941,709

Wind Deductible 1% of TIV Subject to $25K 
per building maximum and $50K Aggregate 
maximum per occurrence  

Named Storm Deductible 5%  per 
occurrence, per location (Total TIV at 
location) deductible , subject to a $100K 
minimum deductible per location (Total TIV  
at location) shall apply for all  locations in 
Harris County and Fort Bend County.

Commercial
General Liability 

Annual Contribution: $6,205.00
Equity Credit Applied:  ($758.00)
Contribution:  $5,447.00
Limit: $1,000,000/ $1,000,000 aggregate

Claims Experience Based
Premium Basis: Square Footage

Added  vacant land at: 7583 E.  Little 
York, Houston, TX 77019

Annual Contribution: $7,958.00
Equity Credit Applied:  ($1,819.00)
Contribution Adjustment:  $6,139.00
Limit: $1,000,000/ $1,000,000 aggregate

Page 29 of 338



2021-22 TCRMF Program Cost

9

Coverage
2021-2022

TCRMF Estimated Premium 
 

Exposure Change
2020-2021

TCRMF Estimated Premium 
Professional 
Liability
 

Annual Contribution: $90,193.00
Equity Credit Applied:  ($11,021.00)
Contribution:  $79,172.00

Limit: $1,000,000/ $3,000,000 aggregate

Expenditures:
Crisis Resolution: $2,910,628
Other Programs & Services: 

$244,786,912

Added Primary Care Endorsement

Annual Contribution: $91,966.00
Equity Credit Applied:  ($5,255.00)
Contribution:  $86,711.00

Limit: $1,000,000/ $3,000,000 aggregate

Automobile Liability 
& Physical Damage

Annual Contribution: 
$99,045 Auto Liability
Equity Credit Applied: ($12,103.00)
Contribution:  $86,942.00

97 total number of vehicles

$44,553.00 Auto Physical Damage
Contribution

Limit: $1,000,000

25 additional motor vehicles than 
expiring term

 

Annual Contribution:
$99,341 Auto Liability
Equity Credit Applied: ($5,637.00)
Contribution:  $93,704.00

72 total number of vehicles

$22,673.00 Auto Physical Damage
Contribution

Limit: $1,000,000

Page 30 of 338



2021-22 TCRMF Program Cost

10

Coverage
2021-2022

TCRMF Estimated Premium 
 

Exposure Change
2020-2021

TCRMF Expiring Premium 

 Workers Compensation 
 
 

Annual Contribution: $631,777.00 
Equity Credit:  ($170,229.00)
Contribution:  $461,548.00

Estimated Cost. Payrolls reported monthly.

Retentions:  $100,000 each claim
$1,000,000 aggregate  
 

Workers Compensation Aggregate  
Limit increased from $300,000 to 
$1,000,000

Employee count increased

2020 Payroll:  $142,867,737
2021 Payroll:  $155,698,506

Annual Contribution: $858,716.00 
Equity Credit:  ($460,000.00)
Contribution:  $398,716.00

Estimated Cost. Payrolls reported 
monthly.

Retentions:  $100,000 each claim
$300,000 aggregate  
 

Page 31 of 338



2021-22 TCRMF Program Cost Options

11

Workers Compensation 
Aggregate Deductible 

Options

Deductible and Aggregate 
Options Rate Credit Applied 

 

 Cost With Equity 
Credit Applied 

Difference on Cost 
Excluding Claims Cost in 

Deductible

1

2

3

  $100,000/$1,000,000 
deductible

$100,000/$750,000 
deductible

$100,000/$500,000 
deductible

$461,548.00

$502,077.00

$568,831.00

$0

$40,529.00

$107,283.00

4 $50,000 deductible each 
claim no aggregate

$531,878.00 $240,559.00

5 $25,000 deductible each 
claim no aggregate

$617,704.00 $326,425.00

6 Guaranteed Cost 
no deductible

$1,021,803.00 $730,524.00

Page 32 of 338



2021-22 TCRMF Program Cost Options

12

Workers Compensation 
Aggregate Deductible 

Options

Deductible and Aggregate 
Options Rate Credit 

Applied 

 Cost With Equity 
Credit Applied 

In Deductible
Loss Forecast

Forecast 
Total Cost of Risk

Including Loss Forecast

1

2

3

  $100,000/$1,000,000 
deductible

$100,000/$750,000 
deductible

$100,000/$500,000 
deductible

$461,548.00

$502,077.00

$568,831.00

$390,000.00

$390,000.00

$390,000.00

$851,548.00

$892,077.00

$958,831.00

4 $50,000 deductible 
each claim no 

aggregate

$531,878.00 $350,000.00 $881,878.00

5 $25,000 deductible 
each claim no 

aggregate

$617,704.00 $300,000.00 $917,704.00

6 Guaranteed Cost 
no deductible

$1,021,803.00 $1,021,803.00 $1,021,803.00

Page 33 of 338



2021-22 TCRMF Program Cost

13

Coverage
2021-2022

TCRMF Estimated Premium 
 

Exposure Change
2020-2021

TCRMF Expiring Premium 

Excess Liability Annual Contribution: $81,690.00
No Equity Credit
 
Limit: $4,000,000 for auto, general 
liability and public official E&O
$2,000,000 for professional liability
Subject to limit retro dates

Annual Contributions for 2021 Annual Contribution: $95,886.00
No equity credit

Limit: $4,000,000 for auto, general liability 
and public official E&O
$2,000,000 for professional liability
Subject to limit retro dates

Public Officials E&O with  
Employment Practices 
Liability

Annual Contribution:$296,663.00
Equity Credit Applied:  ($36,250.00)
Contribution:  $260,413.00

Limit: $1,000,000/ $3,000,000 aggregate

$247,697,540 
Expenditures remain same as 

expiring

Renewal Rate: 1.10
Expiring Rate:  1.13

Annual Contribution: $306,532.00
Equity Credit Applied:  ($17,097.00)
Contribution:  $289,435.00

Limit: $1,000,000/ $3,000,000 aggregate

Terrorism Coverage Not available from TCRMF Not available from TCRMF

Page 34 of 338



2021-22 TCRMF Program Cost

14

Coverage
2021-2022

TCRMF Estimated Premium 
Before Equity Credit 

Difference
2020-2021

TCRMF Expiring Premium  
Workers Compensation  $631,777 ($226,939) $858,716

Auto Liability $99,045 ($296) $99,341
General Liability  $6,205 ($1,753) $7,958

Professional Liability    $90,193 ($1,773)   $91,966
D&O Liability $296,663 ($9,869) $306,532
Excess Liability: $81,690 ($14,196) $95,886
Liability Total:  $573,796 ($27,887) $601,683

Property: $657,127 $205,521  $451,606
Auto Physical Damage: $44,553 $21,880 $22,673

Credit/ Adjustment: $230,361 ($259,447) $489,808

Grand Total: $1,676,892 $232,022 $1,444,870

Percent Increase: 16.06%

Page 35 of 338



Other Coverages (Non-TCRM Fund)
2021-22 TCRMF Program Cost

15

• Flood

• Crime

• Fiduciary Liability

• Notary Errors & Omissions

• Notary Bonds

• Cyber Security Liability 

Page 36 of 338



Other Coverages (Non-TCRM Fund)
2021-22 TCRMF Program Cost

16

Coverage 2021 - 2022
Renewal Premium

 

Exposure Change 2020 - 2021
Expiring Premium

 

%
Change

Crime  Estimated Premium: $4,426.00

Scheduled Locations
Employee Dishonesty:  $600,000
Forgery or Alteration:  $200,000
Inside the Premises:  $  25,000
Outside the Premises:  $  25,000
Computer Fraud: $100,000
Money Orders & Counterfeit Paper 
Currency:  $  25,000
Funds Transfer Fraud: $100,000

Policy Term: 09-01-21/22

Great American Ins. Co. Estimated Premium: $4,098.00

Scheduled Locations
Employee Dishonesty :  $600,000
Forgery or Alteration:  $200,000
Inside the Premises:  $  25,000
Outside the Premises:  $  25,000
Computer Fraud: $100,000
Money Orders & Counterfeit Paper 
Currency: $  25,000
Funds Transfer Fraud: $100,000

Policy Term: 09-01-20/21

 

+8.0%

 

 

 

Fiduciary 
Liability Annual Premium:  $7,624.00

$3 Million Limit of Liability       
Retention: $25,000
Policy Term: 09-01-21/22

Twin City Fire Insurance Co. 
Annual Premium:  $7,592.40
$3 Million Limit of Liability       
Retention: $25,000
Policy Term: 09-01-20/21

 

0.4%

Page 37 of 338



Other Coverages (Non-TCRM Fund)
2021-22 Renewal Projections

17

Coverage 2021- 2022
Renewal Premium

 

Exposure Change 2020 - 2021
Expiring Premium

 

%
Change

Notary Bonds 
3-Yr. Policy Term: 
Varies

 Est. Notary Bond Premium:  $6,461.00

91 Notaries
$71.00 per Notary Bond          

Old Republic
Added 23 additional notaries

Forecasting to add 15% of 
Electronic Notaries

 Est. Notary Bond Premium:  $4,899.00

69 Notaries
$71.00 per Notary Bond          

+ 31.9%

Notary Errors & 
Omissions

Premium: $1,012.20
Policy Term:  11-18-21/22

Western Surety Company
Renewal Premium per 

Projected Total # of Notaries

 Premium: $1,012.20
Policy Term:  11-18-20/21

0.0%

Page 38 of 338



Other Coverages (Non-TCRM Fund)
2021-22 Renewal Projections

18

Coverage 2021- 2022
Renewal Premium

 

Exposure Change 2020 - 2021
Expiring Premium

 

%
Change

Cybersecurity 
Liability

Annual Premium:  $83,129.75

Carrier:  Benchmark Insurance Co.

Policy Term:  05-08-21/22

Deductible:
$50,000 

Great of $50,000 or 
12 hours for business interruption

Limit: $5,000,000

Renewal carrier able to 
provide higher limits than 
prior carrier as follows:

Breach Response, Incident 
Response, Forensic Cost, 
Legal Cost for each coverage.
Expiring $2.5MM 
Renewal:$5MM

Expiring Limit: $7.5MM 
Renewal Limit:$5MM

Beazley increased 
deductible to $100,000 at 
renewal.

Annual Premium:  $81,770.55

Carrier: Beazley Ins. Co.

Policy Term:  04-24-20 to 05-08-21

(Renewal quote: $99,678.75  +21.9%)

Deductible:

$75,000

10 hours for business interruption
$10,000 for Computer Expert Services,  
Public Relations and Crisis 
Management Expenses, $5,000 Legal 
Services 

Limit: $7,500,000

+1.7%

Page 39 of 338



Other Coverages (Non-TCRM Fund)
2021-22 Renewal Projections

19

Coverage 2021- 2022
Renewal Premium

 

Exposure Change 2020 - 2021
Expiring Premium

 

%
Change

Flood Premium:  $49,757.54

Locations: 
1. 11511 Bob White Road
2. 7200 North Loop East
3. 1200 Baker Street
Carrier: Certain Underwriter at Lloyds of 
London

Policy Term: 03-28-21/22

1.  $262,511 building $156,288 contents;       
$22,696 income

2. $2,722,476 building;
 $1,350,181 contents $203,928; income

3. $137,152 contents 

Private Flood Coverage for 
Properties in  “AE” Zone 
 
The 20/21 flood policy  had a 
capped limit of $500,000, per 
location. The carrier was able to 
insure buildings  based on 
valuation report provided by Texas 
Council.

Increasing Flood Contents limits on 
21/22 term to include EDP
1. Increased Contents from 
$154,648 to 156,288
2. Increased Contents from 
$1,049,420 to $1,350,181
3. Increased Contents  from 
$76,634 to $137,152

Premium:  $24,369.30

Locations:  
1. 11511 Bob White Road
2. 7200 North Loop East;
3. 1200 Baker Street
Carrier: Certain Underwriter at 
Lloyds of London

Policy Term: 03-28-20/21

+104.2%

 
TOTAL PREMIUMS:

 

$ 152,410.49  $28,669.44
 

$123,741.05 +23.2%

Page 40 of 338



Residential Program
(2021-2022)

20

The insurance program for the residential programs was originally designed to parallel The Harris Center for 
Mental Health & IDDA’s insurance program as close as possible.  Coverage for the HUD Mental Health portion is 
provided by The Housing Corporation of Houston.  The HUD residential coverage for the IDD program is provided 
by the Village Learning Center, Inc. for the Village of Hickory Glen, and Frost will be handling the Pasadena 
Cottages, Inc. location. Coverage for all six locations include Directors’ & Officers Liability to protect the Board of 
Directors for the respective Boards. 

List of HUD Residential Locations for Mental Health:
• Villas at Bayou Park, Inc.
• Acres Homes Garden, Inc.
• Pear Grove, Inc.
• Pecan Village, Inc.
• Tomball Pines (no current board members at this time)

List of HUD Residential Locations for IDD:
• Pasadena Cottages, Inc.
• The Village at Hickory Glen

Page 41 of 338



Mental Health – Residential HUD Program
(2021-2022)

21

Current Insurance
Villas at Bayou Park, Inc. Acceptance Indemnity(General Liability) 

Effective 07-01-21/22

James River (Umbrella)
Effective 07-01-21/22

Lloyds of London (Property)
Effective 05-15-21/22

Travelers Casualty & Surety Company 
(Directors & Officers Liability & Employment Practices Liability)
Effective 07-06-21/22

Acres Homes Garden, Inc.

 

 

Acceptance Indemnity(General Liability)
Effective 07-01-21/22

James River (Umbrella)
Effective 07-01-21/22

Lloyds of London (Property)
Effective 05-15-21/22

USLI – United States Liability Insurance 
(Directors & Officers Liability & Employment Practices Liability)
Effective 07-01-21/22

Page 42 of 338



Mental Health - Residential Program (con’t)
(2021-2022)

22

Residential Program Current Insurance

Pear Grove, Inc. Acceptance Indemnity(General Liability)
Effective 07-01-21/22

James River (Umbrella)
Effective 07-01-21/22

Lloyds of London (Property)
Effective 05-15-21/22  

USLI – United States Liability Insurance 
(Directors & Officers Liability & Employment Practices Liability)
Effective 07-01-21/22

Pecan Village, Inc.
Acceptance Indemnity(General Liability)
Effective 07-01-21/22

James River (Umbrella)
Effective 07-01-21/22

Lloyds of London (Property)
Effective 05-15-21/22

Page 43 of 338



Mental Health - Residential Program (con’t)
(2021-2022)

23

Residential Program Current Insurance

Pecan Village, Inc.
Selective Insurance of Company  the Southeast
Flood Insurance (Buildings 1 to 4) 
2208 Cedar Bayou Rd, Baytown, TX  77520  (Bldgs#1,2 & 3)
Bldg#1 Premium:$74100
Bldg#2 Premium:$74100
Bldg#3 Premium:$74100
Effective: 12-1-20/21

2208 Cedar Bayou Rd, Baytown, TX  77520 (Bldg#4)   
Bldg#4 Premium:$2,254.00
Effective: 02-12-21/22

USLI – United States Liability Insurance 
(Directors & Officers Liability &Employment Practices Liability)
Effective 07-01-21/22

Page 44 of 338



IDD - Residential Program
(2021-2022)

24

IDD - Residential Program Current Insurance

The Village at Hickory Glen Flood Pol#42 1151588986 03
Carrier: Wright National Flood Insurance Co.
Effective:3-14-21/22
Premium: $811.00          
Location: 3911 Hickory Glen Court, Building 1, Kingwood, TX 77339

Flood Pol# 42 1151588989 03
Carrier: Wright National Flood Insurance Co.
Effective:3-14-21/22  
Premium: $811.00          
Location: 3911 Hickory Glen Court, Building 2  Kingwood, TX 77339

Page 45 of 338



IDD - Residential Program
(2021-2022)

25

IDD - Residential Program Current Insurance

The Village at Hickory Glen

(cont’d)

Flood Pol#42 1151588992 03
Carrier: Wright National Flood Insurance Co.
Effective:3-14-21/22
Premium: $811.00
Location: 3911 Hickory Glen Court, Building 3  Kingwood, TX 77339

Flood Pol#42 1151588995 03
Carrier: Wright National Flood Insurance Co.
Effective:3-14-21/22
Premium: $2,925.00     
Location: 3911 Hickory Glen Court, Building 4 (Clubhouse)  Kingwood, TX 77339

Directors & Officers/ EPL Policy#G27897897 006 
Carrier: Westchester Fire Insurance Co.
Effective: 09-08-20/21 (* Renewal pending)
Premium: $1,981.00

Page 46 of 338



IDD - Residential Program
(2021-2022)

26

IDD- Residential Program Current Insurance

The Village at Hickory Glen ( cont’d) 
Property Pol# Various (Contributing Insurance)
Carrier: Various carriers  (Contributing Insurance)
Effective: 5-15-21/22
Premium: Not provided

General Liability Pol#013-135-928
Carrier: Lexington Insurance  
Effective: 05-15-21/22
Premium :Not Provided

Umbrella Policy#00083296-2
Carrier: James River Insurance
Effective: 05-15-21/22
Premium: Not Provided 

Hired & Non-Owned Auto Pol# 013-135-928
Carrier: Lexington Insurance
Effective: 05-15-21/22
Premium: Not Provided
                                                                                                                                  

Page 47 of 338



IDD - Residential Program
(2021-2022)

27

IDD- Residential Program Current Insurance

Pasadena Cottages, Inc. Property Pol#: TX141868
Carrier: Certain Underwriters at Lloyd’s London
Effective: 04-08-21/22
Premium:$8,070.83

General Liability Pol#PHPK2237013: 
Carrier: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co.
Effective: 04-08-21/22
Premium: $2,792.00

Directors & Officers Liability Pol#: NDO10516533P
Carrier: United States Liability Insurance Co.
Effective: 02-08-21/22
Premium: $1,229.00 

Page 48 of 338



IDD - Residential Program
(2021-2022)

28

IDD-Residential Program Current Insurance

Pasadena Cottages, Inc. (cont’d) Flood Pol# 42 1151414451 04
 Carrier: Wright National Flood Insurance Co.
Effective:11-04-20/21  
Premium: $819.00           
Location: 2122 Wichita St, Pasadena, TX 77502

Flood Pol# 42 1151434101 04
Carrier: Wright National Flood Insurance Co.
Effective:01-15-21/22
Premium: $883.00           
Location: 2122B Wichita St, Pasadena, TX 77502
 

Tomball Pines  No current board members serving at this time

Page 49 of 338



The Harris Center Foundation for Mental 
Health (2021-2022)

29

501(C) (3)Foundation Current Insurance

The Harris Center Foundation for Mental Health D&O Pol# PHSD1587937
 Carrier: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co.
Effective:11-09-20/21  
Premium: $880.00           
 
 
 

Page 50 of 338



All Year Claims Review on Aggregate 
Deductible– Workers Compensation

30

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
$0.00

$100,000.00

$200,000.00

$300,000.00

$400,000.00

$500,000.00

$600,000.00

$700,000.00

$800,000.00

$900,000.00

Total By Policy Year

Total

Linear(Total)

Page 51 of 338



31

Notes on Aggregate

• Seven years have exceeded $300,000 annual claims aggregate

• $1,285,267 in losses funded by Texas Council Member’s contributions

Page 52 of 338



Data as of June 30, 2021  
32

Claims Summary – All Lines

The Harris Center for Mental Health &IDD
Policy Year Summary

$ 900,000

$ 800,000

$ 700,000

$ 600,000

$ 500,000

$ 400,000

$ 300,000

$ 200,000

$ 100,000

$ -
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Total Reported to Date Total Paid to Date Total Reserves

Page 53 of 338



Data as of June 30, 2021  
33

Claims Summary Average Cost- All Lines

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

$70,000

$80,000

$30,496

$72,617

$51,808
$46,355

$35,160

$24,778

$3,452
$7,385 $6,476 $4,879

$2,411 $1,982

The HARRIS CENTER - Average Costs

Average Incurred Per Month Average Incurred Per Claim

Page 54 of 338



Data as of June 30, 2021  
34

Claims Summary

Workers’ Compensation – 5 Year (plus Current) Loss History Detail

Page 55 of 338



Workers Compensation
Top Nature of Injury
Current Policy Period

Picture courtesy of Texas Council Risk Management Fund

Page 56 of 338



Workers Compensation- Top Causes

Current Policy Period

Picture courtesy of Texas Council Risk Management Fund

Page 57 of 338



37

Workers Compensation – Top Causes

Current Policy Period

Current Policy Period

Page 58 of 338



38

Next Steps 

• Obtain Approval of the 2021-22 Commercial Insurance 
Program Renewals

• Provide Claims Information at the August 2021-2022 
Resource Committee Meeting 

Page 59 of 338



39

List of locations

  Mod Address City County Zip Occupancy GL Code

Le
as
e

Sq
 F
t

Va
lu
e

Co
nt
en
ts

Fl
oo

d 
Zo
ne

Pr
op

er
ty
 M

an
ag
er

1 MH-F 2525 Murworth Houston Harris
77054-
1603

Juvenile Justice - 
TCOOMMI 
JR/Alternative 
Education Program 
(AEP)

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op Yes 500 0 0 X  

2 MH 7200 N. Loop E Houston Harris 77028
Chain link fence, auto 
gates, pedestrian gate   No 0 33,140 0

AE                         
Flood Pol.#: 
GIQF1218  

3 MH 3737 Dacoma Houston Harris 77092 Wrought Iron fence   No 0 13,426 0 X  

4 IDD 526 Applewhite Katy Harris
77450-
2404

Wood fence with 
pedestrian gate   No 0 2,515 0 X  

5 CPEP 2627 Caroline Houston Harris 77004
Ornamental metal 
fence, one auto veh   No 0 37,389 0 X  

6 MH-F 1215 Dennis Houston Harris 77004

Wrought Iron fence, 
electronic lock 
pedestrian gate   No 0 12,978 0 X  

7 CPEP 1502 Taub Loop Houston Harris 77030 Sign   No 0 5,665 0 X  

Page 60 of 338



40

List of locations

  Mod Address City County Zip Occupancy GL Code

Le
as
e

Sq
 F
t

Va
lu
e

Co
nt
en
ts

Fl
oo

d 
Zo
ne

Pr
op

er
ty
 

M
an
ag
er

8 CPEP 612 A-E Branard Houston Harris 77006

Wrought Iron fence, 
wooden fence, 
electronic lock, auto 
veh gate   No 0 5,325 0 X  

9 MH 6032 Airline Dr. Houston Harris 77076

Wrought lron fence, 
wood fence, 2 
pedestrian gates, 2 
auto gates   No 0 50,985 0 X  

10 CPEP 5518 Jackson St. Houston Harris 77004
Wood fence, chain link 
fence   No 0 2,431 0 X  

11 MH 5901 Long Drive Houston Harris 77087

Chain link fence with 2 
manual veh gates, 
monument   No 0 26,172 0 X  

12 IDD 5707 Warm Springs Houston Harris 77035
Wood fence with 
pedestrian gate   No 0 2,697 0 X  

13 IDD 6805 Oak Village Drive Humble Harris 77396

Chain link fence, 
manual gate, wood 
site sign   No 0 2,436 0 X  

14 IDD 6125 Hillcroft St Houston Harris
77081-
1003

ECI Hillcroft / Day 
Treatment

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op No 8,803 1,424,259 79,827 X  

Page 61 of 338



41

List of locations

  Mod Address City County Zip Occupancy GL Code

Le
as
e

Sq
 F
t

Va
lu
e

Co
nt
en
ts

Fl
oo

d 
Zo
ne

Pr
op

er
ty

 M
an

ag
er

15 IDD 11511 Bob White Houston Harris 77035 Residential
67017 - Mission Settlement 
or Halfway Houses No 2,590 262,511 156,288

AE
Flood Policy 
#GIQF1218  

16 IDD 526 Applewhite Katy Harris
77450-
2404

Group Living Center / 
Applewhite / ICF

67017 - Mission Settlement 
or Halfway Houses No 2,160 218,447 23,299 X  

17 CPEP 1502 Taub Loop Houston Harris 77019

Neuropsychiatric 
Center / Day 
Treatment / Office

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op Yes 60,000 0 1,753,760 X  

18 CPEP 612 A Branard St. Houston
aouthmo

re 77006

Branard Street Crisis 
Respite Living / 
Carport

67017 - Mission Settlement 
or Halfway Houses No 3,420 237,578 4,558 X  

19 MH-F 6032 Airline Dr Houston Harris 77076
New Start / Adult 
Forensic

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op No 8,803 1,426,259 153,054 X  

20 CPEP 2800 S. McGregor Houston Harris 77021
HCPC / Continuity of 
Care / Day Treatment

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op Yes 11,608 0 53,662 X  

21 IDD 5707 Warm Springs Houston Harris 77035
Group Living Center / 
Westbury House / ICF

67017 - Mission Settlement 
or Halfway Houses No 3,168 299,798 17,326 X  

Page 62 of 338



42

List of locations

  Mod Address City County Zip Occupancy GL Code

Le
as
e

Sq
 F
t

Va
lu
e

Co
nt
en
ts

Fl
oo

d 
Zo
ne

Pr
op

er
ty
 

M
an
ag
er

22 MH-F 1200 Baker St. Houston Harris 77002 Adult Forensic
44440 - Hlth Care Fac-
Clnc, infirm-op Yes 200 0 137,152

AE                                
Flood Policy 
#GIQF1218  

23 CPEP 2627 Caroline Houston Harris 77004

Bristow Bldg / PATH 
/ CCU / CRU / COD / 
MCOT Crisis Care 
Center

44428 - Hlth Care Fac-
alcohol & drug No 31,072 4,587,277 427,004 X  

24 IDD 4014 Market Houston Harris 77020 ECI - Satellite Office
44440 - Hlth Care Fac-
Clnc, infirm-op Yes 370 0 0 X  

25 MH 5901 Long Drive Houston Harris 77087

Southeast 
Community Service 
Center / ACT / FACT 
/ Day Treatment

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-
Clnc, infirm-op No 45,640 6,254,761 5,914,662 X  

26 IDD 6125 Hillcroft St Houston Harris
77081-
1003

Wrought Iron fence, 
2 automatic gates, 
wooden fence, chain 
link fence   No 0 47,586 0 X  

Page 63 of 338



43

List of locations

  Mod Address City County Zip Occupancy GL Code

Le
as
e

Sq
 F
t

Va
lu
e

Co
nt
en
ts

Fl
oo

d 
Zo
ne

Pr
op

er
ty
 

M
an
ag
er

27 IDD
3600 S. Gessner, 
Suite 110 Houston Harris

77063-
5149

IDD - Day Treatment 
and Residents of ICF 
Programs

61225 - Bldg or Prem - 
bank or office Yes 14,047 0 40,668 X  

28 MH-F 1200 Congress Houston Harris 77094

Children's Forensic / 
Juvenile Justice / 
Detention Center

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op No 1500 0 0 X  

29 IDD
9610 Long Point, 
Suite 351 Houston Harris

77055-
4265 ECI - Satellite Office

61225 - Bldg or Prem - 
bank or office Yes 190 0 3,072 X  

30 IDD 2122-A Wichita Houston Harris 77502

Group Living Center / 
Pasadena Cottage 
"A" / Liability Only

67017 - Mission 
Settlement or Halfway 
Houses No 3,546 0 0 X  

31 IDD 2122-B Wichita Houston Harris 77502

Group Living Center / 
Pasadena Cottage 
"B" / Liability Only

67017 - Mission 
Settlement or Halfway 
Houses No 3,546 0 0 X  

Page 64 of 338



44

List of locations

  Mod Address City County Zip Occupancy GL Code

Le
as
e

Sq
 F
t

Va
lu
e

Co
nt
en
ts

Fl
oo

d 
Zo
ne

Pr
op

er
ty
 

M
an
ag
er

32 HUD
2208-A Cedar Bayou 
Road Baytown Harris 77520

(HUD) Owns the land, 
Supportive 
Apartment-4 plex- 
Pecan Villages

67017 - Mission Settlement 
or Halfway Houses No 3,733 0 0 X

Houston 
Housing 
Management 
Corporation 

33 HUD
2208-B Cedar Bayou 
Road Baytown Harris 77520

(HUD) Owns the land, 
Supportive 
Apartment-4 plex- 
Pecan Villages

67017 - Mission Settlement 
or Halfway Houses No 3,362 0 0 X

Houston 
Housing 
Management 
Corporation 

34 HUD
2208-C Cedar Bayou 
Road Baytown Harris 77520

(HUD) Owns the land, 
Supportive 
Apartment-4 plex- 
Pecan Villages

67017 - Mission Settlement 
or Halfway Houses No 3,362 0 0 X

Houston 
Housing 
Management 
Corporation 

35 HUD
2208-D Cedar Bayou 
Road Baytown Harris 77520

(HUD) Owns the land, 
Supportive 
Apartment-4 plex- 
Pecan Villages

67017 - Mission Settlement 
or Halfway Houses No 3,362 0 0 X

Houston 
Housing 
Management 
Corporation 

36 HUD 6400 Bowling Green Houston Harris
77021-
2202

(HUD) Pear Grove 
LRM GL Only   Yes 12,273 0 0 X

Houston 
Housing 
Management 
Corporation 

37 MH-Co 170 Heights Blvd Houston Harris
77007-
3729

CAS Co-Location / 
Heights /Satellite 
Office

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op Yes 1,200 0 0 X  

Page 65 of 338



45

List of locations

  Mod Address City County Zip Occupancy GL Code

Le
as
e

Sq
 F
t

Va
lu
e

Co
nt
en
ts

Fl
oo

d 
Zo
ne

Pr
op

er
ty
 

M
an
ag
er

38 MH-Co 7600 Synott Road Houston Harris
77083-
5106

CAS Co-Location / 
Alief / Satellite Office

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-
Clnc, infirm-op Yes 1,500 0 0 X  

39 MH-Co 7037 Capitol Houston Harris 77011

CAS Co-Location / 
Magnolia Multi 
Service Center / 
Satellite Office

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-
Clnc, infirm-op Yes 800 0 0 X  

40 CPEP 612 B Branard Houston Harris 77006 Storage
68707 - Warehouses-
private No 228 11,397 0 X  

41 CPEP 612 C Branard .St Houston Harris 77006
Branard Street Crisis 
Respite Living

67017 - Mission 
Settlement or Halfway 
Houses No 3,850 424,124 1,147 X  

42 CPEP 612 D Branard Houston Harris 77006 Laundry
68707 - Warehouses-
private No 170 14,132 0 X  

43 CPEP 612 E Branard .St Houston Harris 77006
Branard Street Crisis 
Respite Living

67017 - Mission 
Settlement or Halfway 
Houses No 2,484 308,341 1,147 X  

44 CPEP 5518 Jackson St. Houston Harris 77004

P.E.E.R.S. for Hope 
House / Respite Care 
and Peer Support

67017 - Mission 
Settlement or Halfway 
Houses Yes 4,512 441,452 32,136 X  

45 MH-F 6300 Chimney Rock Houston Harris
77081-
4502

Juvenile Justice / 
TRIAD

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-
Clnc, infirm-op Yes 830 0 0

AE
No  Contents  

Page 66 of 338



46

List of locations

  Mod Address City County Zip Occupancy GL Code

Le
as
e

Sq
 F
t

Bu
ild

in
g

Co
nt
en
ts

Fl
oo

d 
Zo
ne

46 IDD
1500 S. Dairy Ashford, 
Suite 448 Houston Harris

77077-
3854 ECI - Satellite Office

61225 - Bldg or Prem - bank 
or office Yes 616 0 5,737 X

47 MH 3737 Dacoma Houston Harris 77092

Northwest Community 
Service Center / ACT / 
FACT / Day Treatment

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op No 41,410 5,509,765 5,458,982 X

48 CPEP
805 North Dickinson 
Drive Rusk   75785

Rusk State Hospital - 
EDP Location Only   No 0 0 0 X

49 IDD 7171 N. Hwy 6 #206 Houston Harris 77095 ECI - Satellite Office
61225 - Bldg or Prem - bank 
or office Yes 0 0 0 X

50 IDD
817 Southmore Ave, 
Suite 150 Pasadena Harris

77502-
1123

IDD - Day Treatment 
and Residents of ICF 
Programs

44428 - Hlth Care Fac-
alcohol & drug Yes 1,000 0 10,926 X

51 HQ
9401 Southwest 
Freeway Houston Harris 77074

Headquarters / 
Southwest Community 
Services Center

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op No 230,184 42,658,234 11,069,063 X

52 HQ
9401 Southwest 
Freeway Houston Harris 77074 Parking Garage

46622 - Parking Garage - 
Private No 211,680 9,213,304 0 X

53 HQ
9401 Southwest 
Freeway Houston Harris 77074

Pump and Mechanical 
Room 68707 - Warehouses-private No 1,575 1,016,442 0 X

Page 67 of 338



47

List of locations

  Mod Address City County Zip Occupancy GL Code

Le
as
e

Sq
 F
t

Bu
ild

in
g

Co
nt
en
ts

Fl
oo

d 
Zo
ne

Pr
op

er
ty
 M

an
ag
er

54 MH-F
2310 1/2 / 2312 
Atascocita Rd Humble   77396

Dual Diagnosis 
Residential Program 
(DDRP) / Detention 
Facility-GL Only

44428 - Hlth Care Fac-
alcohol & drug No 8,900 0 0 X  

55 CPEP 150 N. Chenevert St. Houston Harris 77002

Police 
Substation/Crisis 
Incident Response 
Team

44428 - Hlth Care Fac-
alcohol & drug No 9,410 0 0 X  

56 CPEP 2505 Southmore Blvd Houston Harris
77004-
7420

Post Hospitalization 
Crisis Residential Unit 
/ Offices

44428 - Hlth Care Fac-
alcohol & drug No 3,740 535,763 42,848 X  

57 CPEP
2505-A Southmore 
Blvd Harris Harris

77004-
7420

Post Hospitalization 
Crisis Residential Unit 
- Apartment Units

67017 - Mission 
Settlement or Halfway 
Houses No 2,784 382,562 42,848 X  

58 CPEP 2507 Southmore Blvd Houston Harris
77004-
7420

Post Hospitalization 
Crisis Residential Unit 
- Apartment Units

67017 - Mission 
Settlement or Halfway 
Houses No 9,346 1,158,047 42,848 X  

Page 68 of 338



48

List of locations

  Mod Address City County Zip Occupancy GL Code

Le
as
e

Sq
 F
t

Bu
ild

in
g

Co
nt
en
ts

Fl
oo

d 
Zo
ne

Pr
op

er
ty
 

M
an
ag
er

59 HUD

6719 W. Montgomery 
Rooms 208, 209, 
211A Houston Harris 77091

MH / LCDC/ 
Supported 
Housing/Supported 
Employment/Acres 
Homes MSC

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op Yes 535 0 1,071 X

Houston 
Housing 
Management 
Corporation 

60 CAS-Co 2100 Shadowdale Dr Houston Harris 77043

CAS Co-Location / 
Spring Branch / 
Satellite Office

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op Yes 1,344 0 16,068 X  

61 MH-Co 4949 Burke Rd Pasadena Harris 77504

CAS Co-Location / 
Pasadena / Satellite 
Office

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op Yes 400 0 16,068 X  

62 IDD 6603 Barbarella Ct Houston Harris
77088-
2108

Residential / Owned 
/ Leased to Program

61216 - Bldg or Prem - 
Lessor's Risk Only No 2,720 279,135 23,209 X  

63 IDD 6607 Stonechase Houston Harris
77084-
1254

Residential / Owned 
/ Leased to ARC 
Respite

61216 - Bldg or Prem - 
Lessor's Risk Only No 2,002 210,256 1,071 X  

Page 69 of 338



49

List of locations

  Mod Address City County Zip Occupancy GL Code

Le
as
e

Sq
 F
t

Bu
ild

in
g

Co
nt
en
ts

Fl
oo

d 
Zo
ne

Pr
op

er
ty
 

M
an
ag
er

64 IDD
1580 Greensmark 
Drive Houston Harris 77067

ECI - Satellite Office - 
LB only

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-
Clnc, infirm-op Yes 300 0 0 X  

65 IDD
6805 Oak Village 
Drive Humble Harris

77396-
2634

Owned, but leased 
to We Thrive

61216 - Bldg or Prem - 
Lessor's Risk Only No 5,664 764,193 66,414 X  

66 MH 7200 N. Loop E Houston Harris
77028-
5951

Northeast 
Community Service 
Center / Day 
Treatment

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-
Clnc, infirm-op No 17,488 2,722,476 1,350,181

AE                                  
Flood Policy 
# GIQF1218  

67 HUD 10955 Kipp Way Houston Harris 77099
(HUD) Villas at 
Bayou Park - GL Only   No 0 0 0 X

Houston Housing 
Management 
Corporation 

68 MH-Co 4901 Lockwood Dr Houston Harris 77026

CAS Co-Location / 
Kashmere / Satellite 
Office

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-
Clnc, infirm-op Yes 1,000 0 0

AE
No Contents  

69 HUD 1909 W. Little York Houston Harris 77091
(HUD) Acres Home 
Garden-GL Only   No 0 0 0 X

Houston 
Management 
Corporation

70 HUD 10913 Cullen Blvd Houston Harris 77047
(HUD) Sunny 
Terrance - GL Only Vacant Land No 36,000 0 0 X  

Page 70 of 338



50

List of locations

  Mod Address City County Zip Occupancy GL Code

Le
as
e

Sq
 F
t

Bu
ild

in
g

Co
nt
en
ts

Fl
oo

d 
Zo
ne

Pr
op

er
ty
 

M
an
ag
er

71 CPEP 1313 Dennis Houston Harris 77004
PATH Laundry / 
Folding / Clothing Sto

68707 - Warehouses-
private No 980 104,888 7280 X  

72 CPEP "0" Dennis Street Houston Harris 77004
Parking Lot - Liability 
Only

46622 - Parking Garage - 
Private No 5,000 0 0 X  

73 CPEP 1215 Dennis Houston Harris 77044
Jail Diversion 
Residential Program

67017 - Mission 
Settlement or Halfway 
Houses No 5,000 1,318,072 46,800 X  

74 CPEP 700 N. San Jacinto Houston Harris 77002
Jail Diversion Joint 
Processing Center

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op Yes 200 0 3,640 X  

75 MH-F 1115 Congress St Houston Harris 77002

Forensic 
Reintegration Court 
(RIC)

44428 - Hlth Care Fac-
alcohol & drug Yes 200 0 0 X  

76 CPEP 5320 N. Shepherd Dr Houston Harris 77091

Houston Emergency 
Communications 
Center/Crisis Lin

44428 - Hlth Care Fac-
alcohol & drug Yes 200 0 624 X  

77 CPEP 810 Marston St. Houston Harris 77019
IDD - Coffee House 
Day Habilitation

44440 - Hlth Care Fac-Clnc, 
infirm-op Yes 340 0 48,204 X  

78  
10950 Beaumont 
Highway Houston Harris 77078 Office   Yes 268 0 0 X  

Page 71 of 338



51

List of locations

  Mod Address City County Zip Occupancy GL Code

Le
as
e

Sq
 F
t

Va
lu
e

Co
nt
en
ts

Fl
oo

d 
Zo
ne

Pr
op

er
ty
 M

an
ag
er

79   5803 Harrisburg Blvd. Houston Harris  

"Open Door 
Mission:Treatment 
Facility-General 
Liability   Yes 3,770 0 0 X  

80   6160 S.Loop E. Houston Harris 77087
Residential 
Treatment Programs   No 4,800 7,500,000 318,000 X  

81   6160 South Loop East Houston Harris 77087

Chain link 
fencing/Wrought iron 
fencing   No 0 100,238 0 X  

82 7583 E. Little York  Houston Harris  77019  Vacant land
49452- vacant land  11.364 

Acres No 0 0 0 X

Page 72 of 338



EXHIBIT F-4



1

Open Enrollment 2022
B o a r d  D i s c u s s i o n A u g u s t  2 ,  2 0 2 1

Page 73 of 338



Agenda

• Overview of Plans

• Medical
• Current State
• Drivers for RFP
• Top RFP Responses
• Proposed OE2022 Rates

• Dental
• Top RFP Responses
• Proposed OE2022 Rates

• Vision
• Top RFP Responses
• Proposed OE2022 Rates

• All Other Plans

2

Page 74 of 338



Overview of Plans

• Medical – RFP

• Dental – RFP

• Vision – RFP (under rate guarantee through CY2024)

• Life/AD&D/STD/LTD – Under rate guarantee through CY2022
• Supplemental Employee Life change: Guarantee Issue and Special Enrollment Opportunity

• EAP – Minor rate increase

• COBRA Administration – Under rate guarantee through CY2023

• FSA Administration – Under rate guarantee through CY2023

3

Page 75 of 338



Medical

4

Page 76 of 338



Medical:  Current State

• Competiveness:  The Harris Center is on par or better 
than our peer group for most plans in the categories of 
Plan Design, Plan Cost, and Overall Plan Value
• Peer group is Healthcare excluding Hospitals
• See Appendices A, B, and C for details

• Our top two most popular plans are:
• OAP With Deductible
• Local Plus

• Our top two most popular elections within plans are:
• Employee Only
• Employee + Children

• These plans/election options cover 80% of enrollees

5

Page 77 of 338



Medical: Drivers for RFP

• Loss ratios exceeded 100% for the 
majority of our rolling 12-month review 
period
• See Appendix D for more details

• Number of Large Claims accrued to the 
plan over the 12-month rolling period

6

Page 78 of 338



Medical: Top RFP Responses

• Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS) is the carrier of choice based on plan design, provider network, formulary, 
proposed rates, and bundling of plans
• Bundling plans increases savings

• Kelsey is in all BCBS plan options

• All major Houston systems in all BCBS plan options
7

See Appendix E for RFP responses
See Appendix F for medical plan design comparison
See Appendix G for provider and Rx disruption details

Page 79 of 338



Medical: Proposed OE2022 Rates

8

For people with salaries 
under $50,000, employee 
costs are kept stable year-
over-year for people in 
Employee Only and 
Employee + Children in the 
Local Plus and OAP with 
Deductible plans, our most 
popular plans covering 
almost 50% of enrollees

Page 80 of 338



Dental

9

Page 81 of 338



Dental: Top RFP Responses

• Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS) is the carrier of choice based on plan design, proposed rates, rate 
guarantee, and bundling of plans
• Bundling plans increases savings

10

See Appendix E for RFP responses
See Appendix H for dental plan design comparison

Page 82 of 338



Dental: Proposed OE2022 Rates

Overall reduction in premiums

11

Page 83 of 338



Vision

12

Page 84 of 338



Vision: Top RFP Responses

• Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS) is the carrier of choice based on plan design, network, proposed rates, rate 
guarantee, and bundling of plans
• Bundling plans increases savings

13

See Appendix E for RFP responses
See Appendix I for vision plan design comparison

Page 85 of 338



Vision: Proposed OE2022 Rates

Overall reduction in premiums

14

Page 86 of 338



Other Offerings

15

Page 87 of 338



All Other Plans

• Employee Supplemental Life
• Guarantee Issue

• Currently:  the lesser of 2x or $200K
• Negotiated change:  $200K
• Primarily benefits employees earning $50,000 annual pay (or less)

• Negotiated a “New Open Enrollment” for OE2022
• Employees may freely elect the maximum allowable (1x, 2x, 3x, or 4x) without completing an EOI

• Employee Assistance Program (EAP) (remain with Cigna)
• Increase from $2.50 pepm to $2.57 pepm; $1.7K increase

• All other plans have no changes or under rate guarantee period

16

Page 88 of 338



Questions

?

17

Page 89 of 338



Appendices

18

Page 90 of 338



A: Medical: Comparisons – Plan Design Value

Employees want to have access to at least one 
medical plan that covers as much or more than an  
average employer benchmarked in their industry 
or geographic location.

Three of four of our medical 
plan offerings are, on average, 
on par with our peer group.

19

Larger values are better

Page 91 of 338



B: Medical: Comparisons – Plan Cost

Payroll contributions are the most visible 
component of a major medical plan. They also 
heavily influence the employees’ perception of the 
benefit and drive migration from one plan to 
another.

In both employee-only and 
family tiers, three out of four of 
our medical plans employee 
costs are on par with our peer 
group.

20

Smaller values are better

Page 92 of 338



C: Medical: Comparisons – Overall Plan Value

Our plan designs and employee costs meet the needs of various employee population, providing 
The Harris Center with a competitive advantage in our labor market in our most popular plans:  
Local Plus and OAP with Deductible.  These plans cover 91% of our enrollees.

21

Smaller values are better

Page 93 of 338



D: Loss Ratio Details

22

Page 94 of 338



E: RFP Responses

23

Page 95 of 338



F: Medical Plan Design Comparison

24

Page 96 of 338



G: Blue Cross Blue Shield Disruption

• 91% match on providers utilized

• Rx disruption review

25

Positive 
3.3%

Neutral 
91.4%

Negative 
2.3%

Excluded 
2.8%

Tier Impact

OE2020 Formulary Impact
United Healthcare to Cigna

OE2022 Formulary Impact
Cigna to BCBS

Page 97 of 338



H: Dental Plan Design Comparison

26

Page 98 of 338



I: Vision Plan Design Comparison

De minimis network provider impact in the Houston metro area for EyeMed based networks listed

27

Page 99 of 338



EXHIBIT F-5



FY2022 Proposed Budget
Operating and Capital

Date: August 17, 2021 Presented By: Sean Kim, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer

Page 100 of 338



• FY2021: Year in Review

• Outcomes and Targets

• Operating 
• Budget Highlights

• Expenses by Category

• Expenses by Program

• Revenue Sources by Category

• Capital

Agenda

2

Page 101 of 338



Year in Review
FY2021

3

Page 102 of 338



Year in Review – FY2021

4

Agency-Wide

• Launched a new electronic health 
record system - Epic

• Continued and increased services 
throughout COVID-19 using 
telehealth technology

• Opened the Respite, Rehabilitation 
and Re-Entry Center

• Encouraged COVID-19 vaccinations 
to all staff and hosted several 
vaccine clinics

• Initiated two Harris Center 
Foundation staff idea funding 
opportunities

• Recruited new CMO, Dr. Luming Li

Epic EHR Launch Respite, Rehab and Re-Entry Center Opening

COVID-19 Vaccine Campaign New CMO, Dr. Luming Li

Page 103 of 338



Year in Review – FY2021

5

Employee Engagement

• Deployed food trucks at various 
locations

• Recognized promotions and 
Team High Fives through the 
employee newsletter

• Monthly wellness initiatives
• Themed employee events 

posted on Intranet and 
newsletters

• Highlighted national employee 
recognition days (ex. Nurses 
week)

• New Inclusion Hub activities to 
connect employees 

• Cut The Tape Program

Nurses Week 2021

The Inclusion Hub

Food Truck Visits for Employees

Employee Promotion Announcements

Page 104 of 338



Year in Review – FY2021

6

Programs/Services

• Launched the Emotional Support 
Text line

• Expanded Primary Care Services
• Launched Health Home program 

with United Healthcare
• Launched COVID-19 mental health 

support line
• Weekly client success story 

distribution
• New chat feature for public website 

visitors
• CORE program expansion 

• Collaboration with Verizon to 
improve access to care

Emotional Support Text Line Health Home Program

COVID-19 Mental Health Support Line

Verizon: Transforming Communication

Page 105 of 338



Outcomes & Targets
FY2021

7

Page 106 of 338



Count of unduplicated clients served for 10 months FYTD (Sep – Jun) 

8

Growth in Agency-Wide People Served

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21

49,266
51,456

55,414 56,097

60,589

Note: Count of unduplicated clients above exclude contracted services such as Harris County Jail   

Page 107 of 338



9

Actual Performance vs. Contractual Targets

AMH CAS IDD

13,918

3,239

847

13,764

3,481

854

Served

Target

FY2021 average unduplicated clients served per month Q1 – Q3 

Page 108 of 338



Operating Budget
FY2022

10

Page 109 of 338



FY2022: Budget Highlights

11

FY2022 Budget Drivers
Financial 
Impact 
($,MM)

Increase in Harris County & Local (County/CORE/1622/Helpline) 4.20 
Includes Helpline Contracts (Δ$2.2 MM), Episcopal Health Foundation 
(Δ$228K), Jail Re-Entry (Δ$750K), County Court Administration (Δ$538K), 
Juvenile Probation (Δ$544K) 

State GR 4.73 Includes H.R. 133 (Δ$4 MM), Adult MH Contract (Δ$666K)

Federal Grants 4.51 

Includes Federal SAPT Block Grant-SAOSR (Δ$311K), 
Federal SAMHSA-Expansion Program (Δ$2.51 MM), 
Federal SAPT Substance Abuse 93.959 (Δ$835K), 
Federal CDBG CCHP COVID-19 (Δ$427K), 
Federal Coalition for the Homeless/City of Houston (Δ$1.1 MM), 
Federal Enhanced Community Coordination (Δ$136K)

Directed Payment Program for Behavioral Health Services (DPP-BHS) 9.49 HHSC created the DPP-BHS to incentivize the CCBHC model of care 

DSRIP Revenue 7.42 Conservatively forecasted DSRIP revenue $33.43 MM

Phase 2 Comp Increase (2.00) Carryover of FY2021 Phase 2 Market-Based Compensation Adjustments 

Merit Increase (2.72)  Merit increase from compensation roadmap planned for beginning of FY2022

Phase 3 Comp Increase (3.17) Phase 3 Market-Based Compensation Adjustments planned for Jan 2022

PAP continues to be a challenge as drugs move to generics (6.70) Depleting stock of PAP brand name drugs

Increase in IT-related Expenses (2.30) IT Expenses including IT Operations, operating equipment, operating 
software, and dues and subscriptions including Epic EHR

Decrease in Interest Income (0.45) Near zero Fed Funds rate projected until 2023

Page 110 of 338



YOY Expense Budget by Category ($,MM)

12

FY2021 Budget FY2022 Budget Increase (Decrease)5

Salaries & Fringe1, 2 191.14 212.57  21.44 

Contracts & Consultants 50.12 50.38  0.26

Travel 2.07 2.18  0.10 

Supplies & Drugs3 22.84 16.46 (6.37)

Other4 19.90 24.10 4.20

Total 286.07 305.70 19.63
1 Relative to FY2021 Working Budget of $200 MM (Δ$13 MM)
2 Includes compensation-related assumptions: merit (Δ$2.72 MM), Phase 3 (Δ$3.17 MM)
3 PAP reduction (Δ$6.7 MM)
4 Equipment- Desktop/Laptop replacements (Δ$1 MM), Dues & Subscription – Epic Operating (Δ$1.5 MM), Other (Δ$1.0 MM) – Security,
  Recruitment, Lab Expenses, etc. 
5 Bold numbers represent variance >10% 

Page 111 of 338



YOY Expense Budget by Program ($,MM)

13

FY2021 Budget FY2022 Budget Increase (Decrease)6

Adult Mental Health1 86.63  87.61  0.98 

Child & Adolescent Services 21.09  21.43  0.33 

Forensic 24.55  25.88  1.33 

IDD2 41.45  39.63  (1.82)

CPEP3 40.63  46.96 6.33

Jail Diversion 6.76  6.95 0.20

Access (Helpline)4 6.56  9.05  2.50 

HCPC 28.55  28.93  0.38 

Administration (IT, Facilities, Pharmacy) 29.84  33.36 3.51

    + Merit and Phase 3 Market-Based Comp5 5.89  5.89 

Total 286.07  305.70 19.63
1 Mental Health H.R.133 (Δ$4.0 MM), State GR (Δ$666K), PAP Reduction (-Δ$6.4 MM) 
2 ECI funding decrease including state-projected 3rd party billing (-Δ$2.37 MM)
3 Residential Respite Rehab, Substance Abuse
4 Helpline Contracts increase
5 Agency-wide Merit Increase (Δ$2.72 MM) and Phase 3 Comp Increase (Δ$3.17 MM)
6 Bold numbers represent variance >10% 

Page 112 of 338



YOY Revenue Sources by Category ($,MM)

14

FY2021 Budget FY2022 Budget Increase (Decrease)5

Harris County & Local1 52.57  55.96  3.74 

PAP 19.00  12.31  (6.69)

State GR 114.24  118.97  4.73 

State Grants 11.95  11.76  (0.53)

Federal Grants 12.76  17.27  4.51 

DSRIP2 26.01  33.43  7.42

Third Party Billings3 41.99  41.22  (0.77)

Other Revenue Sources4 7.56  14.78  7.22 

Total 286.07  305.70 19.63
1 Includes increase in funding net of decrease in interest income
2 DSRIP revenue conservative projection: $33.43 MM  
3 Includes state-projected ECI Third Party Billings decrease (Δ$1.49 MM) 
4 Includes DPP-BHS (Δ$9.49 MM)
5 Bold numbers represent variance >10% 

Page 113 of 338



Capital Budget
FY2022

15

Page 114 of 338



Overview ($,MM)

16

Project Total Carryover New Total
Count $ $ $

Land, Design 
and/or 
Construction

8 19,362,202 1,632,462 20,994,664

Facilities 36 2,308,033 1,883,400 4,191,433

IT 15 2,575,941 790,000 3,365,941

Total 59 24,246,176 4,305,862 28,552,038

Land, Design and/or Construction projects contribute to 74% of the FY2022 Capital Budget

Page 115 of 338



Facilities Capital Projects – Residential Homes

17

Project Type Locations Cost ($)

Whole-Home Generator Installation Applewhite, Donsky House, Jackson St, Pasadena A, Pasadena B, Stonechase, Warm Springs 87,500

Window Replacement Applewhite, Donsky House, Pasadena A, Pasadena B, Stonechase, Warm Springs 64,000 

Gas Furnace - Replacement Pasadena A 58,000

Kitchen Remodel and Floor Replacement Jackson St 55,000 

Residential Refresh Applewhite, Stonechase 24,000 

Fire Alarm Monitoring/Cellular Communicator Donsky House, Pasadena A, Pasadena B, Applewhite, Warm Springs 8,900 

TOTAL 297,400

Page 116 of 338



Facilities Capital Projects

18

Location Project Carryover Balance1  Cost ($)

Northeast Clinic Clinic Design & Construction 10,000,000  10,000,000

Northeast Clinic Total   10,000,000  10,000,000 

Northwest Clinic Clinic Land & Design 2,525,000  2,525,000 

Northwest Clinic Total   2,525,000  2,525,000 

NPC Renovations 3,715,998  3,715,998 

NPC Total   3,715,998  3,715,998 

South Loop East RRR Apartment Design & 
Construction2  1,543,014 2,975,476

South Loop East RRR HVAC / Generator 2,223,033 2,223,033

South Loop East RRR Perimeter Fence 220,000

South Loop East RRR Floor Replacement 85,000  85,000

South Loop East RRR Total   3,851,047 5,503,509

Southeast Clinic Clinic Land 1,400,000  1,400,000

Southeast Clinic Pharmacy & Business Office 
Relocation     125,000

Southeast Clinic Security Access Control     7,000

Southeast Clinic Total   1,400,000 1,532,000

1Carryover Projects are funded by Fund Balance CAPEX
2HHSC-HCC Grant is providing $4.8MM construction funding, total spent to date $137K, total project cost is $7.9M
3Expected payback period of 6 years based on current usage

Location Project Carryover Balance1  Cost ($) 

Southwest Clinic Clinic Design & Construction 178,190 178,190

Southwest Clinic LED Lighting Conversion 
(Clinical Areas – Floors 1 thru 4) 80,000

Southwest Clinic Emergency Fire Pump 
Replacement and Upgrade 75,000

Southwest Clinic 7th Floor Disaster 
Preparedness Response 75,000

Southwest Clinic Restroom Renovations 
(2 Additional Floors) 60,000

Southwest Clinic Safety Fence 50,000

Southwest Clinic Loading Dock Repair Assessment 20,000

Southwest Clinic Gate Operators 17,000

Southwest Clinic Total   178,190 555,190

Agencywide Building Air & Automation3 
(6 locations) 800,000

Agencywide Security Camera Upgrade 
& System Migration 257,000

Agencywide Total 1,057,000

Total 24,888,697

Page 117 of 338



IT Capital Projects

19

Unit Category Project Carryover Balance1 Cost

1147 Equipment EPIC Equipment Upgrade 428,252  428,252 

1147 Equipment Network Hardware Refresh 8,000 8,000

Equipment Total 436,252 

1147 IT Security SOC as a Service2 375,000 

1147 IT Security PAM (Privilege Access 
Management) 2  115,000 

1147 IT Security Endpoint Detection and 
Response 42,000  42,000 

1147 IT Security Business Associates/Vendor 
Security Mgt Svs 28,250  28,250 

IT Security Total 560,250 

1158 IT Support EPIC Implementation 800,000 800,000

IT Support Total 800,000

1147 Network Infrastructure DRaaS 273,728 273,728

Network Infrastructure Total 273,728

Unit Category Project Carryover Balance1 Cost

1147 Operations HRIS 376,867  376,867 

1147 Operations DocuSign Implementation 162,754  162,754 

1147 Operations
New Harris Center External 
Website and Digital Platform 
Design

300,000 

1147 Operations Data As a Service Platform | 
PowerBI 165,435  165,435 

1147 Operations Office 365 Licenses, Email and 163,505  163,505 

1147 Operations ROSS Phase II Enhancements 76,940  76,940 

1147 Operations Incident Reporting Sys Replace 50,210  50,210 

Operations Total 1,295,711

Grand Total $3,365,941

1Carryover Projects are funded by Fund Balance CAPEX
2Project funded by Real Property & IT Infrastructure

Page 118 of 338



Funding Overview

20

Carryover New Total
$ $ $

Fund Balance CAPEX 24,246,176 0 24,246,176

Real Property & IT 
Infrastructure 0 490,000 490,000

General Fund Balance 0 3,815,862 3,815,862

Total 24,246,176 4,305,862 28,552,038

Page 119 of 338



Appendix:
Commercial Insurance Renewal

FY2022

21

Page 120 of 338



2021-22 TCRMF Program Cost

22

Coverage
2021-2022

TCRMF Estimated Premium 
Before Equity Credit 

Difference
2020-2021

TCRMF Expiring Premium  
Workers Compensation  $631,777 ($226,939) $858,716

Auto Liability $99,045 ($296) $99,341
General Liability  $6,205 ($1,753) $7,958

Professional Liability    $90,193 ($1,773)   $91,966
D&O Liability $296,663 ($9,869) $306,532
Excess Liability: $81,690 ($14,196) $95,886
Liability Total:  $573,796 ($27,887) $601,683

Property: $657,127 $205,521  $451,606
Auto Physical Damage: $44,553 $21,880 $22,673

Credit/ Adjustment: $230,361 ($259,447) $489,808

Grand Total: $1,676,892 $232,022 $1,444,870

Percent Increase: 16.06%

Page 121 of 338



Other Coverages (Non-TCRM Fund)
2021-22 TCRMF Program Cost

23

• Flood

• Crime

• Fiduciary Liability

• Notary Errors & Omissions

• Notary Bonds

• Cyber Security Liability 

Page 122 of 338



Other Coverages (Non-TCRM Fund)
2021-22 TCRMF Program Cost

24

Coverage 2021 - 2022
Renewal Premium

 

Exposure Change 2020 - 2021
Expiring Premium

 

%
Change

Crime  Estimated Premium: $4,426.00

Scheduled Locations
Employee Dishonesty:  $600,000
Forgery or Alteration:  $200,000
Inside the Premises:  $  25,000
Outside the Premises:  $  25,000
Computer Fraud: $100,000
Money Orders & Counterfeit Paper 
Currency:  $  25,000
Funds Transfer Fraud: $100,000

Policy Term: 09-01-21/22

Great American Ins. Co. Estimated Premium: $4,098.00

Scheduled Locations
Employee Dishonesty :  $600,000
Forgery or Alteration:  $200,000
Inside the Premises:  $  25,000
Outside the Premises:  $  25,000
Computer Fraud: $100,000
Money Orders & Counterfeit Paper 
Currency: $  25,000
Funds Transfer Fraud: $100,000

Policy Term: 09-01-20/21

 

+8.0%

 

 

 

Fiduciary 
Liability Annual Premium:  $6,724.00

$3 Million Limit of Liability       
Retention: $25,000
Policy Term: 09-01-21/22

Twin City Fire Insurance Co. 
Annual Premium:  $7,592.40
$3 Million Limit of Liability       
Retention: $25,000
Policy Term: 09-01-20/21

 

-11.4%

Page 123 of 338



Other Coverages (Non-TCRM Fund)
2021-22 Renewal Projections

25

Coverage 2021- 2022
Renewal Premium

 

Exposure Change 2020 - 2021
Expiring Premium

 

%
Change

Notary Bonds 
3-Yr. Policy Term: 
Varies

 Est. Notary Bond Premium:  $6,461.00

91 Notaries
$71.00 per Notary Bond          

Old Republic
Added 23 additional notaries

Forecasting to add 15% of 
Electronic Notaries

 Est. Notary Bond Premium:  $4,899.00

69 Notaries
$71.00 per Notary Bond          

+ 31.9%

Notary Errors & 
Omissions

Premium: $1,012.20
Policy Term:  11-18-21/22

Western Surety Company
Renewal Premium per 

Projected Total # of Notaries

 Premium: $1,012.20
Policy Term:  11-18-20/21

0.0%

Page 124 of 338



Other Coverages (Non-TCRM Fund)
2021-22 Renewal Projections

26

Coverage 2021- 2022
Renewal Premium

 

Exposure Change 2020 - 2021
Expiring Premium

 

%
Change

Cybersecurity Liability Annual Premium:  $83,129.75

Carrier:  Benchmark Insurance Co.

Policy Term:  05-08-21/22

Renewal carrier able to 
provide higher limits than 
prior carrier.

Coverages:
Breach Response, Incident 
Response, Forensic Cost, 
Legal Cost for each coverage.
Expiring $2.5MM 
Renewal:$5MM

Annual Premium:  $81,770.55

Carrier: Beazley Ins. Co.

Policy Term:  04-24-20 to 05-08-21

(Renewal quote: $99,678.75  +21.9%)

+1.7%

Page 125 of 338



Other Coverages (Non-TCRM Fund)
2021-22 Renewal Projections

27

Coverage 2021- 2022
Renewal Premium

 

Exposure Change 2020 - 2021
Expiring Premium

 

%
Change

Flood Premium:  $49,757.54

Locations: 
7200 North Loop East;
11511 Bob White Road
1200 Baker Street
Carrier: Certain Underwriter at Lloyds of 
London

Policy Term: 03-28-21/22

Private Flood Coverage for 
Properties in  “AE” Zone 
 
The 20/21 flood policy  had a 
capped limit of $500,000, per 
location. The carrier was able 
to insure buildings  based on 
valuation report provided by 
Texas Council.

Premium:  $24,369.30

Locations:  
7200 North Loop East;
11511 Bob White Road
1200 Baker Street
Carrier: Certain Underwriter at Lloyds 
of London

Policy Term: 03-28-20/21

+104.2%

 
TOTAL PREMIUMS:

 

$ 151,510.49  $27,769.04
 

$123,741.45 +22.4%

Page 126 of 338



EXHIBIT F-6



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

 
August 17, 2021 

 
Request for Board Approval 

Transfer July 2021 Enhanced FMAP Funds to COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve & 
Payment of COVID Expenses from COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve 

 
 
Background: The Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) authorized an 
increase of 6.2% to the Federal Medical Assistance Percentage (FMAP).  The enhanced 
FMAP (eFMAP) increased the federal share in the Medicaid program and applied to The 
Harris Center’s DSRIP payments from January 2020 through July 2021.   

• The current COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve balance is $2,445,788. 
• The eFMAP portion of the July 2021 DSRIP payment is $4,406,205.  
• The COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve balance will be $6,851,993 after the transfer of 

July 2021 eFMAP funds.     
 
FY2021 COVID-19 Impact:   

$1.55 MM of unfunded expenses in Unit 2379 (COVID-19)* 
$0.35 MM of Employer PTO for COVID-19 positives in high risk units and Negative PTO 
$0.09 MM Recruitment sign-on bonus & overtime for Psyc Techs 
$1.87 MM of 3rd party billing revenue impact  
$3.86 MM of Use of Fund Balance from COVID eFMAP Reserve   

 
* Net of Continuous Care Performance Awards previously funded by the COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve 
 
FY2022 and Beyond: Remaining Balance of $2.99 MM will carry into FY2022 and 
beyond to be utilized as COVID-related relief.  Authorization to pull funds out of the 
Reserve Fund must be granted by the Board.    
 
Request Summary:  
1) Transfer $4,406,205 July 2021 eFMAP Funds to the COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve. 
2) Utilize $3.86 MM from the COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve to fund FY2021 COVID-19 
    related expenses and 3rd party billing revenue impact.     
 
Sean Kim, MBA, CPA 
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD  

Page 127 of 338



EXHIBIT F-7



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

For the Eleventh Month and Year to Date Ended July 31, 2021

Fiscal Year 2021

Presented to the Resource Committee of the Board of Trustees on August 17, 2021

Financial Report

Page 128 of 338



Page 129 of 338



Actual Budget Variance
Revenues 21,329$         21,478$         (149)$             
Expenditures 26,553 23,771 (2,782)

Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (5,223)$          (2,293)$          (2,930)$          

Actual Budget Variance
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources 23,814$         (303)$             24,117$  

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Financial Summary

For the Eleventh Month and Year to Date Ended July 31, 2021

Month (,000)

Year-to-date (,000)

Page 2

Page 130 of 338



Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ %

Total Revenues:
Harris County and Local 4,589,840$          4,315,514$          274,326$             6% 51,335,274$        47,413,427$        3,921,847$          8%
PAP / Samples 964,673 1,583,323 (618,650) -39% 13,072,392 17,416,553 (4,344,161)           -25%
Interest 3,133 41,666 (38,533) c -92% 114,383 458,326 (343,943)              -75%
State General 9,677,339 9,642,311 35,028 0% 105,738,986 106,065,406 (326,420)              0%
State Grants 1,631,686 891,778 739,908 d 83% 11,492,488 9,895,834 1,596,654            16%
Federal Grants 1,654,674 1,063,105 591,569 56% 18,345,359 11,694,152 6,651,207            57%
3rd party billings 2,808,033 3,940,212 (1,132,179) e -29% 33,719,191 37,953,519 (4,234,328)           -11%

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -------------
Total Revenue 21,329,378 21,477,909 (148,531) f -1% 233,818,073 230,897,217 2,920,856 1%

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 18,105,259 15,925,153 (2,180,106) g -14% 177,769,355 175,184,270 (2,585,085) -1%
Travel 65,622 193,215 127,593 66% 542,275 1,879,804 1,337,529            71%
Contracts and Consultants 1,648,631 1,803,662 155,031 9% 18,036,381 19,875,782 1,839,401            9%
HCPC Contract 2,331,047 2,369,794 38,747 2% 25,747,644 26,077,734 330,090               1%
Supplies and Drugs 1,302,321 1,902,175 599,854 32% 16,570,445 20,935,121 4,364,676            21%
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 403,600 377,155 (26,445) h -7% 12,418,204 4,162,816 (8,255,388)           -198%
Building (Purch, Rent, Maint) 1,905,245 283,231 (1,622,014) i -573% 13,675,005 3,114,688 (10,560,317)         -339%
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 10,306 28,249 17,943 64% 135,133 311,814 176,681               57%
Telephone and Utilities 271,386 222,979 (48,407) -22% 2,370,253 2,452,821 82,568 3%
Insurance, Legal, Audit 146,826 137,843 (8,983) -7% 1,735,596 1,516,063 (219,533)              -14%
Note Payments - - - 0% 552,424 588,597 36,173 6%
Other 322,685 460,148 137,463 30% 4,386,983 5,131,284 744,301               15%
Claims Denials 39,854 67,534 27,680 41% 648,291 742,852 94,561 13%
Reserve for Bad Debt - - - 0% - - - 0.0%

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -----------
Total Expenses 26,552,782 23,771,138 (2,781,644) j -12% 274,587,989 261,973,646 (12,614,343) -5%

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (5,223,404) a (2,293,229) (2,930,175) (40,769,916) (31,076,429) (9,693,487)

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx 1,584,778            - 1,584,778 10,210,473          - 10,210,473 
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 - - - 3,568,270            - 3,568,270 
Fund Balance DSRIP 629,236               629,236               - 6,928,667            6,930,895            (2,228) 
Waiver 1115 Revenues 2,167,484            2,167,484            - 23,842,345          23,842,366          (21) 
DSRIP Transition 1,809,411            - 1,809,411 19,022,277          - 19,022,277 
COVID-19 FMAP Allocation - - - - - -
Insurance Proceeds 9,177 - 9,177 990,607               - 990,607 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - 21,125 - 21,125 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Securities - - - - - -

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources 976,682$             503,491$             473,191$             23,813,848$        b (303,168)$            24,117,016$        

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============

Favorable  or (Unfavorable) Favorable  or (Unfavorable)

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenue and Expenses - Actual to Budget 

Month Ended July 31, 2021 Eleven Months Ended July 31, 2021

Variance Variance

For the Eleventh Month and Year to Date Ended July 31, 2021

Page 3

Page 131 of 338



Core Business DSRIP Capital Expenditures

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Revenues:
Local 5,557,093$          5,935,695$          553$  4,808$  - - 
State General Revenue 9,659,386            9,624,358            17,953 17,953 - - 
State Grants 1,631,686            891,778 - - - - 
Federal Grants 1,654,674            1,063,105            - - - - 
Federal Revenue - DSRIP - - 3,976,895            1,705,260            - - 
3rd party billings 2,722,736            3,842,252            85,297 97,960 - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Revenue 21,225,575          21,357,188          4,080,698            1,825,981            - - 

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 16,703,855          14,562,531          1,401,404            1,362,622            - - 
Travel 61,585 180,437 4,037 12,778 - - 
Contracts and Consultant 1,548,593            1,686,104            100,038 117,558 - - 
HCPC Contract 2,331,047            2,369,794            - - - - 
Supplies and Drugs 1,272,355            1,878,502            29,966 23,673 - - 
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 251,430 300,549 64,610 76,606 87,560 - 
Building (Rent, Maint) 280,731 (102,011)              127,296 385,242 1,497,218            - 
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 7,357 16,539 2,949 11,710 - - 
Telephone and Utilities 254,471 183,355 16,915 39,624 - - 
Insurance, Legal, Audit 118,923 107,784 27,903 30,059 - - 
Note Payments - - - - - - 
Other 314,748 436,504 7,937 23,644 - - 
Claims Denials 39,507 67,039 347 495 - - 
Reserve for Bad Debt - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Expenses 23,184,602          21,687,127          1,783,402            2,084,011            1,584,778            - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (1,959,027)           (329,939)              2,297,296            (258,030)              (1,584,778)           - 

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx - - - - 1,584,778            - 
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 - - - - - - 
Fund Balance DSRIP 629,236 629,236 - - - - 
Insurance Proceeds 9,177 - - - - - 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - - - - 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Securities - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources (1,320,614)$         299,297$             2,297,296$          (258,030)$            -$                         -$  

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenues and Expenses- Core Business and DSRIP

Management Use Only (Non-GAAP)
For The Month Ended July 31, 2021

Month Ended July 31, 2021

Page 4

Page 132 of 338



Core Business DSRIP Capital Expenditures

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Revenues:
Local 64,488,296$        65,235,418$        33,753$  52,888$  $ $
State General Revenue 105,541,503        105,867,923        197,483 197,483 - - 
State Grants 11,492,488          9,895,834            - - - - 
Federal Grants 18,345,359          11,694,152          - - - - 
Federal Revenue - DSRIP - - 42,864,622 23,842,323 - - 
3rd party billings 32,674,130          36,883,497          1,045,061 1,070,022 - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Revenue 232,541,776        229,576,824        44,140,919          25,162,716          - - 

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 163,861,744        159,804,858        13,907,611          15,379,412          - - 
Travel 526,086 1,745,837            16,189 133,967 - - 
Contracts and Consultant 17,091,831          18,582,673          944,550 1,293,109            - - 
HCPC Contract 25,747,644          26,077,734          - - - - 
Supplies and Drugs 16,416,080          20,678,131          154,365 256,990 - - 
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 3,752,914            3,307,125            750,493 855,691 7,914,797 - 
Building (Purch,Rent, Maint) 9,959,007            1,227,690            1,420,322            1,886,998            2,295,676 - 
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 105,273 185,004 29,860 126,810 - - 
Telephone and Utilities 2,189,857            2,016,010            180,396 436,811 - - 
Insurance, Legal, Audit 1,425,671            1,184,767            309,925 331,296 - - 
Note Payments - - 552,424 552,424 - - 
Other 4,221,191            4,872,033            165,792 259,251 - - 
Claims Denials 634,480 737,407 13,811 5,445 - - 
Reserve for Bad Debt - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Expenses 245,931,778        240,419,269        18,445,738          21,518,204          10,210,473          - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (13,390,002)         (10,842,445)         25,695,181          3,644,512            (10,210,473)         - 

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx - - - - 10,210,473          - 
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 3,568,270            - - - - - 
Fund Balance DSRIP 6,928,667            6,930,895            - - - - 
Insurance Proceeds 988,747 - 1,860 - - - 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 21,125 - - - - - 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Securities - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources (1,883,193)$         (3,911,550)$         25,697,041$        3,644,512$          -$  -$  

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenues and Expenses- Core Business and DSRIP

Management Use Only (Non-GAAP)
For the Year to Date Ended July 31, 2021

Eleven Months Ended July 31, 2021

Page 5

Page 133 of 338



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparative Balance Sheet

As of July 31, 2021

Ending Balance Increase/(Decrease)
June 30, 2021 July 31, 2021 July

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 115,147,222$           140,032,839$          24,885,617$            a
Inventory - includes RX 304,877 300,070 (4,807) b
Prepaid Expenses 2,563,932 5,719,089 3,155,157 c
A/R Medicaid, Medicare, 3rd Party 14,863,471               14,997,768               134,297 
    Less Bad Debt Reserve (5,884,594) (6,374,639)               (490,045) 
A/R Other 24,260,223               25,498,888               1,238,665 d
A/R DSRIP 41,180,372               - (41,180,372) e
Total Current Assets 192,435,503             180,174,014            (12,261,488)             

Land 5,028,114 5,028,114 - 
Building 25,773,792               25,773,792               - 
Building Improvements 20,863,609               20,914,881               51,272 
Furniture and Fixtures 9,882,776 9,898,640 15,864 
Vehicles 1,605,231 1,605,231 - 
Construction in Progress 12,973,806               14,558,584               1,584,778 
Total Property, Plant & Equipment 76,127,328               77,779,242               1,651,914 

TOTAL ASSETS 268,562,831$           257,953,256$          (10,609,574)$           

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Unearned Income 48,992,867$             43,918,857$            (5,074,010)$             f
Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payables 25,855,733               19,907,275               (5,948,458) g
Current Portion Long Term Debt - - - 
Total Current Liabilities 74,848,600               63,826,132               (11,022,468)             

State Escheatment Payable 34,746 33,067 (1,679) 
Total Non Current Liabilities 34,746 33,067 (1,679) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 74,883,346               63,859,199               (11,024,147)             

General Fund Balance 20,086,704               15,533,661               (4,553,043) h
Nonspendable

Investment in Inventories 304,877 304,877 - 
Investment In Fixed Assets 76,127,328               77,779,242               1,651,914 

Assigned:
Current Capital Projects 21,856,193               24,824,448               2,968,255 i
Future Purchases of Real Property and IT Infrastructure 1,365,842 1,365,842 - 
   Debt Repayment - - - 
   Self Insurance 2,000,000 2,000,000 - 
   ECI Building Use 361,664 361,664 - 
   Waiver 1115 41,439,569               40,810,333               (629,236) 
   COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve 2,445,788 2,445,788 - 
   Compensated Absences 4,854,354 4,854,354 - 
Total 170,842,319             170,280,209            (562,110) 

Year to Date Excess Revenues over
(under) Expenditures 22,837,166 23,813,848               976,682 

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 193,679,485             194,094,057            414,572 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 268,562,831$           257,953,256$          (10,609,575)$           

Page 6

Page 134 of 338



Page 7 

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD 
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Reports 

For Month and Year to Date Ended July 31, 2021 

I. Comparison of Revenue and Expenses - Actual to Budget

a. For the month of July 2021, the eleventh month of the fiscal year, The Harris Center is reporting Excess Expenditures over
Revenues of $5,223,404.

b. The year-to-date amount translates to Excess Revenues over Expenditures of $23,813,848 after use of fund balance, fund
balance CapEx, fund balance DSRIP, Waiver 1115 revenues, insurance proceeds and DSRIP transition are considered.

c. Interest is unfavorable to budget by $38,533 because of lower interest rates caused by Federal Reserve interest rate
reductions in response to the economic downturn from the COVID-19 pandemic.

d. State Grants is favorable to budget by $739,908 primarily due to timing of ECI revenues.

e. Third Party Billings is unfavorable to budget by $1,132,179.

f. Total Revenue is unfavorable to budget by $148,531.

g. Salaries and Fringe Benefits are unfavorable to budget by $2,180,106 due to salaries and fringe benefits paid by grants
awarded after approval of the original budget.

h. Equipment is unfavorable to budget by $26,445. Equipment purchases exceeding budget were covered by funds designated
by the Board through Fund Balance-Capex designations.

i. Building is unfavorable to original budget by $1,622,014 primarily due to purchase of NE land which was covered by funds
designated by the Board through Fund Balance-Capex designations.

j. Total Expenses are unfavorable to budget by $2,781,644 due to expenses associated with Board designated Capex funds and
grants awarded after approval of the original budget.

Page 135 of 338



Page 8 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents The agency considers cash and cash equivalents to be cash on hand, demand deposit accounts and
short term investments with maturities of less than ninety days. Cash and cash equivalents increased from the prior month because of
operations and receipt of DSRIP funds.

Page 136 of 338



Page 9 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

b. Inventory normally does not significantly change from month to month. The balance is normally only updated annually at the time of
the year end physical inventory. PAP/Drug Samples are not included in inventory, as this inventory does not belong to the Center.
Inventory consists of the following:

c. Prepaid Expenses increased because of HCPC activity.

Page 137 of 338



Page 10 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

d. Account Receivable Other increased in July.

Page 138 of 338



Page 11 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

d. Account Receivable Other (continued)

e. A/R DSRIP decreased as the Center adjusted for DSRIP funding owed to the Center.

Page 139 of 338



Page 12 

f. Unearned Income decreased due to spending of State GR funds.

g. Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payable decreased because of payment timing related to accounts payable, payroll, and employee
fringe benefit liabilities.

h. General Fund Balance decreased due to allocation of Board approved Capex projects to designated fund balance categories.

i. Current Capital Projects increased due to allocation of Board approved Capex projects to designated fund balance categories.

j. Days of Operation in Reserve for Total Agency is 161 days and for Core Business is 99 days versus 159 and 98 days for the prior
month, respectively.

III. Investment Portfolio

a. Total investments as of July 31, 2021, is $56,023,110 of which 100% is in government pools (Texas Class 49% and TexPool 51%).

b. Investments this month yielded interest income of $3,133.

Page 140 of 338



THE HARRIS CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH AND IDD
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 
July 31, 2021

Issuer CUSIP/ Security # Book Value              
Cost Transfer In Txpool/ TX Class

Transfer  Out      Tx 
pool/ TX Class

Interest       Txpool/ 
TX Class

Allowance 
Unrealized G/L

Market Value 
Ending Balance

Market Value 
Beginning Balance Portfolio %

Interest 
Accrual

Coupon 
Rate

Settlement 
Date

GOVERNMENT POOLS
TEXAS CLASS - GF G/L 120700 31,220,727            - (3,300,000) 1,496 27,922,223            49.84% 0.0615%

TEXPOOL    ISF G/L 120610 2,288,884              - - 37 2,288,921              4.09% 0.0189%
TEXPOOL   GF G/L 120600 1,001,560              - - 16 1,001,576              1.79% 0.0189%
TEXPOOL PRIME G/L 120620 29,308,805            - (4,500,000) 1,585 24,810,390            44.29% 0.0655%

Subtotal Texpool 43,086,969            - (4,500,000) 1,638 28,100,887            50.16%

Subtotal Government Pools 95,795,588            - (7,800,000) 3,133 56,023,110            100.00%

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 95,795,588$          -$  (7,800,000)$  3,133$  -$  56,023,110$          100.00%

Total Investment Interest G/L 409000 & 409005 3,133 3 Month Weighted Average Maturity (Days) 1.00
- 3 Month Weighted Average Yield 0.0655%

Total Interest 3,133$  3 Month Rolling Weighted Average Daily Treasury Bill Rate (4 weeks) 0.0280%

Page 13

Page 141 of 338



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Monthly Report of Financial Transactions Related to Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits

Report for July 2021

Vendor Description Monthly Not-To-Exceed* Jul-21
YTD Total 

(Apr -July 2021)

Lincoln Financial Group
Retirement Funds 
(401a, 403b, 457)

$1,500,000 $1,281,359 $4,022,523

UNUM Insurance
Life Insurance, AD&D, LTD, Vision, 
Individual Disablity Insurance

$220,000 $197,100 $790,049

Cigna Health and Life Insurance Health and Life Insurance $2,300,000 $2,027,580 $8,161,698

Cigna Dental Dental Insurance $100,000 $77,161 $310,874

* As established by the Board Resolution: Harris Center Board of Trustees Signature Authorization and Delegation Authority for Certain Items effective April 28, 2021

Note: Non-employee portion of July 2021 Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits = 9% of Expenditures.

    Page 14      

Page 142 of 338



EXHIBIT F-8



Page 143 of 338



Page 144 of 338



Page 145 of 338



Page 146 of 338



Page 147 of 338



Page 148 of 338



Page 149 of 338



Page 150 of 338



Page 151 of 338



Page 152 of 338



Page 153 of 338



Page 154 of 338



Page 155 of 338



Page 156 of 338



Page 157 of 338



Page 158 of 338



Page 159 of 338



Page 160 of 338



Page 161 of 338



Page 162 of 338



Page 163 of 338



Page 164 of 338



Page 165 of 338



Page 166 of 338



Page 167 of 338



Page 168 of 338



Page 169 of 338



Page 170 of 338



Page 171 of 338



Page 172 of 338



Page 173 of 338



Page 174 of 338



Page 175 of 338



Page 176 of 338



EXHIBIT F-9



Page 177 of 338



Page 178 of 338



Page 179 of 338



Page 180 of 338



Page 181 of 338



Page 182 of 338



Page 183 of 338



Page 184 of 338



Page 185 of 338



EXHIBIT F-10



Page 186 of 338



Page 187 of 338



Page 188 of 338



Page 189 of 338



Page 190 of 338



Page 191 of 338



Page 192 of 338



Page 193 of 338



Page 194 of 338



Page 195 of 338



Page 196 of 338



Page 197 of 338



Page 198 of 338



Page 199 of 338



Page 200 of 338



Page 201 of 338



Page 202 of 338



Page 203 of 338



Page 204 of 338



Page 205 of 338



Page 206 of 338



Page 207 of 338



Page 208 of 338



Page 209 of 338



EXHIBIT F-11



Page 210 of 338



Page 211 of 338



Page 212 of 338



Page 213 of 338



Page 214 of 338



Page 215 of 338



Page 216 of 338



Page 217 of 338



Page 218 of 338



Page 219 of 338



Page 220 of 338



EXHIBIT F-12



Page 221 of 338



Page 222 of 338



Page 223 of 338



Page 224 of 338



Page 225 of 338



Page 226 of 338



Page 227 of 338



Page 228 of 338



Page 229 of 338



Page 230 of 338



Page 231 of 338



Page 232 of 338



Page 233 of 338



Page 234 of 338



Page 235 of 338



Page 236 of 338



Page 237 of 338



Page 238 of 338



Page 239 of 338



Page 240 of 338



Page 241 of 338



Page 242 of 338



Page 243 of 338



Page 244 of 338



Page 245 of 338



Page 246 of 338



Page 247 of 338



Page 248 of 338



Page 249 of 338



Page 250 of 338



Page 251 of 338



Page 252 of 338



Page 253 of 338



Page 254 of 338



Page 255 of 338



Page 256 of 338



Page 257 of 338



Page 258 of 338



Page 259 of 338



Page 260 of 338



Page 261 of 338



Page 262 of 338



Page 263 of 338



EXHIBIT F-13



Page 264 of 338



Page 265 of 338



Page 266 of 338



Page 267 of 338



Page 268 of 338



Page 269 of 338



Page 270 of 338



Page 271 of 338



Page 272 of 338



Page 273 of 338



Page 274 of 338



Page 275 of 338



Page 276 of 338



Page 277 of 338



Page 278 of 338



Page 279 of 338



Page 280 of 338



Page 281 of 338



Page 282 of 338



Page 283 of 338



Page 284 of 338



Page 285 of 338



Page 286 of 338



Page 287 of 338



Page 288 of 338



Page 289 of 338



EXHIBIT F-14



Page 290 of 338



Page 291 of 338



Page 292 of 338



Page 293 of 338



Page 294 of 338



Page 295 of 338



Page 296 of 338



Page 297 of 338



Page 298 of 338



Page 299 of 338



Page 300 of 338



Page 301 of 338



Page 302 of 338



Page 303 of 338



Page 304 of 338



Page 305 of 338



Page 306 of 338



Page 307 of 338



Page 308 of 338



Page 309 of 338



Page 310 of 338



Page 311 of 338



Page 312 of 338



Page 313 of 338



Page 314 of 338



Page 315 of 338



Page 316 of 338



Page 317 of 338



Page 318 of 338



Page 319 of 338



Page 320 of 338



Page 321 of 338



Page 322 of 338



Page 323 of 338



Page 324 of 338



Page 325 of 338



Page 326 of 338



Page 327 of 338



Page 328 of 338



Page 329 of 338



Page 330 of 338



Page 331 of 338



Page 332 of 338



Page 333 of 338



EXHIBIT F-15



Page 334 of 338



Page 335 of 338



Page 336 of 338



Page 337 of 338



Page 338 of 338


